




Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2017/18Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 253,033.00 337,959.00 31,197.00 305,426.58 1,335.42 Teachers Salaries

1120 5,790.00 6,670.00 880.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 62,735.00 63,765.00 6,273.54 58,241.86 750.40-Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 122,205.00 122,205.00 10,183.76 110,061.61 1,959.63 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 1,000.00 11,000.00 2,000.00-Teacher in Charge

1900 18,800.00 10,050.00 8,750.00 Other Certificated Salaries

Total for Object 1000 437,973.00 558,519.00 48,654.30 501,450.05 8,414.65 

2100 127,814.00 99,056.00 12,257.64 92,569.72 5,771.36-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2105 42.00 42.00-Per Diem - Same Day Travel

2115 473.24 473.24-Classified Extra Duty

2120 7,618.00 8,895.04 1,277.04-Classified Substitutes

2200 11,472.00 21,800.00 1,367.73 17,122.10 3,310.17 Classified Support Salaries

2300 90,686.00 90,376.00 7,482.00 84,754.50 1,860.50-Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 135,885.00 154,987.00 11,910.20 131,502.50 11,574.30 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2420 36.50 36.50-Clerical Substiture

2900 16,284.00 15,128.00 15,313.14 185.14-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 382,141.00 388,965.00 33,017.57 350,708.74 5,238.69 

3101 79,671.00 103,739.00 6,955.88 70,898.92 25,884.20 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 664.00 66.41 1,679.94 1,082.35-STRS Classified Positions

3201 51.25 51.25-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 62,566.00 58,616.00 4,967.10 52,885.31 763.59 PERS Classified Positions

3301 1,286.00- 40.92 1,326.92-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 23,436.00 22,531.00 1,834.07 19,804.00 892.93 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 5,861.00 7,683.00 664.43 6,893.67 124.90 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,484.00 5,528.00 467.98 4,989.82 70.20 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 100,460.00 124,887.00 10,399.01 96,951.25 17,536.74 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 73,741.00 114,461.00 10,137.59 102,395.14 1,928.27 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 218.00 276.00 24.33 252.58 .91-SUI Certificated

3502 193.00 196.00 16.51 174.05 5.44 SUI Classified

3601 15,002.00 20,072.00 1,735.68 18,021.42 314.90 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 14,036.00 14,440.00 1,222.47 13,029.86 187.67 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 380,668.00 471,807.00 38,491.46 388,068.13 45,247.41 

4100 614.00 2,851.00 2,851.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 1,000.00 1,000.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 38,755.00 51,914.00 305.56 17,853.58 33,754.86 Materials and Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2018, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2018  1:40PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2105
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2420
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2017/18Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4320 500.00 600.00 421.13 178.87 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,014.22 14.22-Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,538.31 711.69 3,250.00 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 22,766.00 28,770.00 4,479.38 24,290.62 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 69,135.00 91,635.00 1,843.87 24,480.00 65,311.13 

5100 44,000.00 43,000.00 17,038.74 34,750.85 8,789.59-Subagreements for Services

5200 26,817.00 54,761.00 3,541.10 13,495.00 37,724.90 Travel and Conference

5300 19,205.00 19,570.00 71.75 11,909.00 7,589.25 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,600.00 8,506.00 1,094.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 819.86 8,477.09 96.95-Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 3,100.00 96.46 1,027.39 1,976.15 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 20,500.00 20,500.00 7,107.00 13,393.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 613.00 793.00 36.69 145.00 611.31 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 174.03 1,325.97 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 445,615.00 493,256.00 95,093.39 293,021.11 105,141.50 Contracted Services

5899 827.77 1,409.35 2,237.12-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,900.00 5,200.00 1,356.64 3,470.26 373.10 Communications

Total for Object 5000 583,250.00 661,980.00 119,056.43 384,644.02 158,279.55 

6200 18,867.00 22,664.00 22,664.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 38,867.00 42,664.00 .00 .00 42,664.00 

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 24,428.00 24,428.00 .00 .00 24,428.00 

349,583.43 1,916,462.00 2,239,998.00 241,063.63 1,649,350.94 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 22,115.93 8,755.93-Other Authorized Interfund Tra

71,244.07 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 22,115.93 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

420,827.50 2,009,822.00 2,333,358.00 241,063.63 1,671,466.87 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2018, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2018  1:40PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=102637&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619








1 

SCOE Minutes 

May 8, 2018 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

May 8, 2018 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Teleconferenced to Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

6:00pm Regular Session 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 

 

B. ROLL CALL 

 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 

  Allen Wright, Vice President 

  Sharon Dryden, Clerk 

  Mike Moore, Member 

  Jenny Gant, Member 

 

ABSENT: None 

 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

5/0 

 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Assignment of Kathleen Epps, Downieville School Transportation Aide, 20 

hours weekly .667 FTE, effective 4/09/2018 

b. Curriculum Coordinator 2018-2019, Appointment of Megan Meschery FTE 1.0 

– recommend Megan for full-time Curriculum Coordinator, effective 7/1/18 

c. Report out from California County Superintendents Educational Services 

Association (CCSESA) Meeting April 22nd-24th – a lot of talk about the 

budget and politics in the organization.  

d. Professional Services Agreement with Jane Lee for 2018-2019 – Counselor in 

DVL – no change from last year 

e. Professional Services Agreement with Janis Hardeman for 2018-2019 – a few 

more days added, but next year is going to be her last 

 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/17 to 04/30/2018 

 

3. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

a. None  

 

4. Public Comment 

a. Current location –  

Megan Meschery: Sierra Schools Foundation report 

b. Videoconference location – no comment 



2 

SCOE Minutes 

May 8, 2018 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held April 10, 2018 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 04/01/2018 through 04/30/2018 

3. Authorization to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between Sierra County 

Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, 2019-03C 

WRIGHT/GANT 

5/0 

 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. Unfinished Business and General Orders 

a. Discuss Bids and Action for Asphalt and Concrete Project 

GRANT: One bid came in at $720K – pretty high; recommend amendments to 

base project and go out to get new bids for a more diverse selection to choose 

from 

MOORE moved to reject bid. Seconded by DRYDEN. 

5/0 

 

2. New Business 

PUBLIC HEARING – LCAP 

a. Public Hearing opened at 6:17pm to receive public comment on the Proposed 

2018-19 Local Control and Accountability Plan and closed without comment. 

PUBLIC HEARING – SCOE Budget 

b. Public Hearing opened at 6:18pm to receive public comment on the 2018-19 

Proposed Budget and closed without comment. 

PUBLIC HEARING – Proposition 30, Education Protection Account 

c. Public Hearing opened at 6:18pm to receive public comment on the use of 

Proposition 30 Funding for 2018-19 and closed without comment. 

PUBLIC HEARING – Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement 

d. Public Hearing opened at 6:19pm to receive public comment regarding 

Collective Bargaining Agreement (Items e-l) and closed without comment. 

e. Presentation and Approval of the Tentative Agreement to Administration 

Employees 2017-2018 Negotiations for salary and benefits 

f. Presentation and Approval of the Tentative Agreement to Classified Employees 

2017-2018 Negotiations for salary and benefits 

g. Presentation and Approval of the Tentative Agreement to Classified 

Management Employee 2017-2018 Negotiations for salary and benefits 

h. Presentation and Approval of the Tentative Agreement to Confidential 

Employees 2017-2018 Negotiations for salary and benefits 

i. Completion of Bargaining, Administration Employees, 2017-2018 

Negotiations 

j. Completion of Bargaining, Classified Employees, 2017-2018 Negotiations 

k. Completion of Bargaining, Classified Management Employee, 2017-2018 

Negotiations 

l. Completion of Bargaining, Confidential Employees, 2017-2018 Negotiations 

m. Approval of 2018-2019 Extra Duty Assignments and Stipends 

MOORE moved to approve e-m. Seconded by WRIGHT. 

5/0 

MOORE: bonus $8.25 per work day 

 



3 

SCOE Minutes 

May 8, 2018 

n. Adoption of Resolution 18-007, Set Superintendent Salary 

MOORE motioned to adopt Resolution 18-007 at $25,000 per year, for the 

2018-2019 fiscal year.  GANT seconded. 

TRUSTEE DRYDEN  AYE 

TRUSTEE HALL  AYE 

TRUSTEE GANT  AYE 

TRUSTEE MOORE  AYE 

TRUSTEE WRIGHT  AYE 

5/0 

o. Authorization for Certificated Employees to participate in up to five Staff 

Development Activities during 2018-19, designed by teachers for teachers 

pursuant to the provision of SB1193, at least six hours in length, to be 

compensated at the rate of $200 per documented Staff Development Activity. 
(SPTA Collective Bargaining Agreement Article 3.11) 

DRYDEN/MOORE 

5/0 

 

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

 

p. Administrative Regulation 3230, Federal Grant Funds, revision 

q. Board Policy AND Administrative Regulation 3551, Food Service 

Operation/Cafeteria Fund, revision 

r. Board Policy AND Administrative Regulation 3553, Free and Reduced Price 

Meals, revision 

s. Board Policy 5030, Student Wellness, annual review -no change (access available 

online at www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org) 
t. Board Policy AND Administrative Regulation AND Exhibit 5116.1, 

Intradistrict Open Enrollment, annual review per Education Code 35160.5, 

48980 

u. Board Policy AND Administrative Regulation 6171, Title I Programs, revision 

v. DELETE or REVISE Exhibit 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures 

w. DELETE Exhibit 9150, Student Board Members 

**Tabled all discussion and action on Policies and Regulations to District meeting** 

 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 12, 2018 at Downieville School, 130 

School St., Downieville, CA 95936 beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5:00pm 

and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00pm. 

 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

 

I. ADJOURN at 6:26pm 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

5/0 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Sharon Dryden, Clerk    Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/


Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2018 through 05/31/2018

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014918 05/10/2018 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 735.84 

00014919 05/10/2018 BEHAVIOR CONSULTANTS INT. 01-5810 BEHAVIOR ASSEMENT 960.00 

00014920 05/10/2018 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 SELPA MTG EXPENSES 223.90 

WORKABILITY CONFERENCE 150.00 373.90 

00014921 05/10/2018 CARRIER SI, INC. 01-4400 HEADSETS 1,329.60 

00014922 05/10/2018 COLUSA COUNTY OFFICE OF ED 01-5300 CSR DUES 400.00 

00014923 05/10/2018 KATHLEEN EPPS 01-5200 FINGERPRINTING 25.00 

MILEAGE 196.20 221.20 

00014924 05/10/2018 GIRARD, EDWARDS, STEVENS & TUCKER LLP 01-5801 LEGAL FEES 6,145.00 

00014925 05/10/2018 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 2,050.00 

00014926 05/10/2018 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,440.00 

00014927 05/10/2018 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 180.14 

00014928 05/10/2018 MARY LOWE 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,040.00 

00014929 05/10/2018 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

8,212.50 

00014930 05/10/2018 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 20.74 

00014931 05/10/2018 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 221.06 

00014932 05/10/2018 SINGLETON AUMAN PC 01-5810 AUDIT FEES 2,200.00 

00014933 05/10/2018 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 MAY 18 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,600.00 

76-9576 MAY 18 HEALTH INSURANCE 18,868.90 20,468.90 

00014934 05/10/2018 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 87.62 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 53.46 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 47.71 188.79 

00014935 05/30/2018 HEIDI BETHKE 01-4300 PARENT NIGHT SUPPLIES 91.26 

00014936 05/30/2018 KATHLEEN EPPS 01-5200 MILEAGE 1,079.10 

00014937 05/30/2018 EDUCATORS PUBLISHING SERVICE 01-4300 RECIPE FOR READING MATERIALS 568.39 

00014938 05/30/2018 NONA GRIESERT 01-5200 MILEAGE 35.43 

01-5899 MILEAGE 106.27 141.70 

00014939 05/30/2018 JAMES STANFIELD CO. 01-4300 CURRICULUM BUNDLE 1,794.88 

00014940 05/30/2018 N2Y 01-4300 NEWS 2 YOU SUBSCRIPTION 177.54 

00014941 05/30/2018 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 18.03 

00014942 05/30/2018 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 164.54 

00014943 05/30/2018 TERESA TAYLOR 01-5200 MILEAGE 383.68 

00014944 05/30/2018 U.S. BANK 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 275.61 

LAMINATOR & PRINTER 461.96 

SHOP SUPPLIES 426.01 

STUDENT SUPPLIES 60.04 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 813.10 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2018  1:42PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2018 through 05/31/2018

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014944 05/30/2018 U.S. BANK 01-5899 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 688.76 2,725.48 

Total Number of Checks 27 53,332.27 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 27 34,463.37 01

Payroll Clearing 1 18,868.90 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 27 53,332.27 

.00 

53,332.27 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2018  1:42PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:57 AM

2018-19 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year.  A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca18asstoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Joy Paull, jpaull@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D.

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative Signature Date 06/12/2018

Page 1 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:43 AM

2018-19 Protected Prayer Certification
ESSA Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected prayer in public 
elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Franco Rozic, Title I Monitoring and Support Office, frozic@cde.ca.gov , 916-319-0269

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The LEA hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA has no policy that 
prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set forth in the 
"Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant

Authorized Representative Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative Signature Date 06/12/2018

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time an explanation must be provided 
in the Comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:48 AM

2018-19 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCFF@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Pursuant to Section 1112 (Title 20, United States Code, Section 6312) of the Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) may 
receive a subgrant from the State only if the LEA has on file with the State a plan approved by the State 
educational agency.

Within California, LEAs that apply for ESSA funds are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). 
The LCAP, in conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve as the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the completed Addendum will be approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA and submitted to the California Department of Education (CDE), 
and that the LEA will work with the CDE to ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the 
ESSA programs for which they are applying for federal education funds.

County Offices of Education and School Districts Enter the original 
approval date of the county office of education or school district 
2017–18 – 2019–20 LCAP

07/01/2017

Charter Schools Enter the adoption date of the charter school LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Page 3 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:54 AM

2018-19 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Education Data Office, ConApp@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The LEA is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding selections with their local 
governing board.

Date of approval by local governing board 06/12/2018

District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your district has more than 50 English learners 
the district must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) and involve them in the 
application for funding for programs that serve English learners.

DELAC representative's full name

DELAC review date

Meeting minutes web address

Please enter the Web address of DELAC review meeting minutes (format 
http://SomeWebsiteName.xxx). If a Web address is not available, the LEA 
must keep the minutes on file which indicates that the application is 
approved by the committee.

DELAC comment DELAC Advisory Committee is not 
required. EL population is under the 

threshold.

If an advisory committee refused to review the application, or if DELAC 
review is not applicable, enter a comment. (Maximum 500 characters)

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year the LEA must apply for the fund by selecting Yes. Only the 
categorical funds the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title III English Learner No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Title III Immigrant No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Page 4 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:54 AM

2018-19 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Education Data Office, ConApp@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement Grant Yes

ESSA Sec. 5211 SACS 5810 
 ATTENTION: If participating, the LEA also needs to apply for the SRSA 
grant directly through the USED at https://www.grants.gov/.

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Alternative Uses of Funds Authority 
Participation

Yes

Title IV, Part A (Student Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1112(b)
SACS 4127

Page 5 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert

Date: 5/17/2018 11:55 AM

2018-19 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by CDE oversight personnel when conducting audits and sub-
recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically granted when the LEA 
submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Julie Brucklacher, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jbruckla@cde.ca.gov, 916-327-0858

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.  
Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the Web at 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2018-19 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:6/1/2018
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



California Department of Education                                                               Special Education Division 
Revised Feb 2017 

 
 

Annual Budget and Service Plan 
 

Checklist of Items to Submit to the 
California Department of Education by June 30, 2018 

 
Annual Budget Plan: 
 

Form ABP–01: Certification of Annual Budget Plan  
 
Annual Budget Plan–Page 2 
 
Copy of Public Hearing Notice 
 
 

Annual Service Plan: 
 
Form ASP–03: Certification of Annual Service Plan 
 
Form ASP–01a: California Special Education Management Information System 
(CASEMIS) Service Descriptions 

 
Form ASP–01b: Modified or Customized CASEMIS Descriptions 
 

� Description of CASEMIS Code 900, if applicable 
 
Physical Location of Services Plan–Form ASP–02a 
 

� Annual Service Plan (001) 
 

� Other Facilities (002) 
 

� Infant Services (003) 
 

� Pre-School Services (004) 
 

 Facility 32: County Jails Included in the Plan  
 
Copy of Public Hearing Notice 



1 

California Department of Education                                                                                  Special Education Division 
ABP–01 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Certification of Annual Budget Plan  

 Fiscal Year 2018–19 
 

1. Check one, as applicable: 
  [  X  ] Single District  [    ]  Multiple District  [    ]  District/County 

Special Education Local Plan Area 
(SELPA) Code 
 
46-10462 

SELPA Name 
 
 
Sierra County Office of Education 

Application Date 
 
 
06/30/2018 

SELPA Address 
 
P.O. Box 955 

SELPA City 
 
Loyalton 

SELPA Zip code 
 
96118 

Name SELPA Director (Print) 
 
Heidi Bethke 

SELPA Director’s Telephone 
Number 
 
(530) 993-4485 x 170 

2. Certification by Designated Administrative And Fiscal Agency for This Program 
(Responsible Local Agency/Administrative Unit [RLA/AU]) 

RLA/AU Name  
 
Sierra County Office of Education 

Name/Title of RLA/AU Superintendent  
 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D. 

RLA/AU Telephone Number 
(530) 993-1660 x110 

RLA/AU Street Address 
 
109 Beckwith Road 

RLA/AU City 
 
Loyalton 

RLA/AU Zip code 
 
96118 

Date of Governing Board Approval 
 
 
06/12/2018 

  

 

Certification of Approval of Annual Budget Plan Pursuant to California Education Code 
Section 56205(b) 

 
I certify that the Annual Budget Plan was developed according to the SELPA’s local plan 
governance and policy making process. Notice of this public hearing was posted in each 
school within the SELPA at least 15 days prior to the hearing.   
 
The Annual Budget Plan was presented for public hearing on June 12th, 2018. 
 
Adopted this 12th day of June 2018. 
 
 
Signed:        ________________________________ 
  RLA/AU Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

California Department of Education   Special Education Division 
ABP–01 (rev Feb 2017) 

Annual Budget Plan  
 Fiscal Year 2018–19 

The Annual Budget Plan shall identify expected expenditures for all items required by this part 
as listed below. The Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) codes provide source 
information from the local educational agency (LEA) reporting. 

Reference/Label Instructions Estimated 
Totals 

A Funds received in accordance with Chapter 7.2 
(commencing with California Education Code 
[EC] Section 56836) 
(Special Education Program Funding) 

SACS Resource Code 
6500 (State),  
3300–3499 (Federal) 
6512–6535 (General 
Fund) 

671,000 

B Administrative costs of the plan SACS Goal Code 5001 
Function 2100 

800 

C Special Education services to pupils  
with: (1) severe disabilities, and (2) low-
incidence disabilities 

SACS Goal Code 5710 
0.00 

SACS Goal Code 5730 
93,000 

SACS Goal Code 5750 
42,000 

D Special education services to pupils 
with non-severe disabilities 

SACS Goal Code 5770 
378,000 

E Supplemental aids and services to meet the 
individual needs of pupils placed in regular 
education classrooms and environments 

Any SACS Goal Code 
with SACS Function 
Code 11301 

17,000 

F Regionalized operations and services, and 
direct instructional support by program 
specialists in accordance with Article 6 
(commencing with Section 56836.23) of Chapter 
7.2 (SELPA Program Specialists Funding) 

SACS Goal Code 5050 
0.00 

SACS Goal Code 5060 
0.00 

G The use of property taxes allocated to the 
special education local plan area pursuant to EC 
Section 2572 

Statement is included in Local Plan 

1 Function Activity Classification can be found http://www.cde.ca.gov/be/ag/ag/yr08/mar08item24a6.doc 

For California Department of Education Use Only 

Received by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:  Date: ________  By: ______ _______ 

http://www.cde.ca.gov/be/ag/ag/yr08/mar08item24a6.doc




California Department of Education  Special Education Division  
ASP–03 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Certification of Annual Service Plan 

Fiscal Year 2018–19 
 

1. Check one, as applicable: 
  [  x  ]  Single District  [    ]  Multiple District  [    ]  District/County 

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 
Code 
46-10462 

SELPA Name 
 
Sierra County SELPA 

Application Date 
 
June 12th, 2018 

SELPA Address 
 
P.O. Box 955, 109 Beckwith Street 

SELPA City 
 
Loyalton 

SELPA Zip code 
 
96118 

Name SELPA Director (Print) 
 
 
Heidi Bethke 

SELPA Director’s Telephone 
Number 
 
(530) 993-1660 x 170 

2. Certification by Designated Administrative And Fiscal Agency for This Program  
(Responsible Local Agency [RLA] or Administrative Unit [AU]) 

RLA/AU Name  
 
Sierra County Office of Education 

Name/Title of RLA/AU Superintendent  
 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D. 

RLA/AU Telephone Number 
 
(530) 993-1660 x 110 

RLA/AU Street Address 
 
P.O. Box 955, 109 Beckwith Street 

RLA/AU City 
 
Loyalton 

RLA/AU Zip code 
 
96118 

Date of Governing Board Approval 
 
June 12th, 2018 

 

 
 

Certification of Approval of Annual Service Plan Pursuant to California Education Code 
Section 56205(b) 

 
I certify that the Annual Service Plan was developed according to the SELPA’s local plan governance 
and policy making process. Notice of this public hearing was posted in each district within the SELPA 
at least 15 days prior to the hearing.   
 
 
The Annual Service Plan was presented for public hearing on June 12th, 2018. 
 
Adopted this 12th day of June, 2018. 
 
 
Signed:        ________________________________ 
  RLA/AU Superintendent 
 
 
 
  For California Department of Education Use Only 

 
Received by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:  Date:  ____  By:        



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

210 Family training, counseling, and home visits (ages 0–2 only): This 

service includes: services provided by social workers, psychologists, or other 

qualified personnel to assist the family in understanding the special needs of 

the child and enhancing the child’s development. Note: Services provided by 

specialists (such as medical services, nursing services, occupational therapy, 

and physical therapy) for a specific function should be coded under the 

appropriate service category, even if the services were delivered in the 

home
X

34 Code of Federal 
Regulations  (CFR ) 

sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

220 Medical services (for evaluation only) (ages 0–2 only): Services provided 

by a licensed physician to determine a child’s developmental status and need 

for early intervention services. X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

230 Nutrition services (ages 0–2 only): These services include conducting 

assessments in: nutritional history and dietary intake; anthropometric, 

biochemical, and clinical variables; feeding skills and feeding problems; and 

food habits and food preferences. X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

240 Service coordination (ages 0–2 only) 
X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

250 Special instruction (ages 0–2 only): Special instruction includes: the design 

of learning environments and activities that promote the child’s acquisition of 

skills in a variety of developmental areas, including cognitive processes and 

social interaction; curriculum planning, including the planned interaction of 

personnel, materials, and time and space, that leads to achieving the 

outcomes in the child’s individualized family service plan (IFSP); providing 

families with information, skills, and support related to enhancing the skill 

development of the child; and working with the child to enhance the child’s 

development. X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

260 Special education aide in regular development class, childcare center, 
or family childcare home (ages 0–2 only) X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

California Department of Education

Form ASP-01a (rev Feb 2017)                              California Special Education Management Information System
                                                                                                    Service Descriptions
Special Education Local Plan Area: Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

270 Respite care services (ages 0–2 only): Through the IFSP process, short-

term care given in-home or out-of-home, which temporarily relieves families 

of the ongoing responsibility for specialized care for child with a disability.  

(Note: only for infants and toddlers from birth through 2, but under 3.) X

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

330 Specialized academic instruction: Adapting, as appropriate to the needs of 

the child with a disability, the content, methodology, or delivery of instruction 

to ensure access of the child to the general curriculum, so that he or she can 

meet the educational standards within the jurisdiction of the public agency 

that apply to all children. X

34 CFR  Section 

300.39(b)(3)

340 Intensive individual instruction: IEP Team determination that student 

requires additional support for all or part of the day to meet his or her IEP 

goals.

X
30 California Education 

Code (EC ) Section 56364

350 Individual and small group instruction: Instruction delivered one-to-one or 

in a small group as specified in an IEP enabling the individual(s) to 

participate effectively in the total school program.

X 5 California Code of 
Regulations  (CCR ) Section 

3051;

30 EC  Section 56441.2

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial 

intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using 

spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation 

(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed 

disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or 

the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language. 

Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the 

English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are 

not included. Services include specialized instruction and services: 

monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect, 

including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(15), 

300.8 (c)(11)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

425 Adapted physical education: Direct physical education services provided by 

an adapted physical education specialist to pupils who have needs that 

cannot be adequately satisfied in other physical education programs as 

indicated by assessment and evaluation of motor skills performance and 

other areas of need. It may include individually designed developmental 

activities, games, sports, and rhythms, for strength development and fitness 

suited to the capabilities, limitations, and interests of individual students with 

disabilities who may not safely, successfully, or meaningfully engage in 

unrestricted participation in the vigorous activities of the general or modified 

physical education program. 

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.5;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections

300.108, 300.39 (b)(2)

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services: 

Specialized physical health care services means those health services 

prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically 

related training of the individual who performs the services and which are 

necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR 

Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are 

not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer 

treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;

30 EC  sections 56363, 

49423.5(d)

34 CFR  Section 300.107;

436 Health and nursing–other services: This includes services that are 

provided to individuals with exceptional needs by a qualified individual 

pursuant to an IEP when a student has health problems which require 

nursing intervention beyond basic school health services. Services include 

managing the health problem, consulting with staff, group and individual 

counseling, making appropriate referrals, and maintaining communication 

with agencies and health care providers. These services do not include any 

physician supervised or specialized health care service. IEP required health 

and nursing services are expected to supplement the regular health services 

program. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.107 

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

445 Assistive technology services: Any specialized training or technical support 

for the incorporation of assistive devices, adapted computer technology, or 

specialized media with the educational programs to improve access for 

students. The term includes a functional analysis of the student's needs for 

assistive technology; selecting, designing, fitting, customizing, or repairing 

appropriate devices; coordinating services with assistive technology devices; 

training or technical assistance for students with a disability, the student's 

family, individuals providing education or rehabilitation services, and 

employers. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections 

300.6, 300.105

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to 

improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help 

abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and 

use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception 

and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct 

and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other 

educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include 

therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's 

environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff 

and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified 

occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy 

Certification Board. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(6)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

460 Physical therapy: These services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a 

registered physical therapist, or physical therapist assistant, when 

assessment shows a discrepancy between gross motor performance and 

other educational skills. Physical therapy includes, but is not limited to, motor 

control and coordination, posture and balance, self-help, functional mobility, 

accessibility and use of assistive devices. Services may be provided within 

the classroom, other educational settings or in the home, and may occur in 

groups or individually. These services may include adaptations to the 

student's environment and curriculum, selected therapeutic techniques and 

activities, and consultation and collaborative interventions with staff and 

parents.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section

 300.34 (c)(9); California 

Business and Professions 
Code 

(B&PC ) Chapter 5.7

sections 2600–2696;

Government Code  (GC ) 

Interagency Agreement 

Chapter 26.5 

Section 7575(a)(2)

510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects 

as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on 

learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling 

is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.
X

5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(2)

515 Counseling and guidance: Counseling in a group setting, provided by a 

qualified individual pursuant to an IEP. Group counseling is typically social 

skills development, but may focus on such student aspects as education, 

career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on learning problems 

or guidance programs for students. IEP required group counseling is 

expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program. 

Guidance services include interpersonal, intrapersonal, or family 

interventions, performed in an individual or group setting by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP. Specific programs include social skills 

development, self-esteem building, parent training, and assistance to special 

education students supervised by staff credentialed to serve special 

education students. These services are expected to supplement the regular 

guidance and counseling program. X

34 CFR sections 

300.24.(b)(2), 300.306;

5 CCR  Section 3051.9

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

520 Parent counseling: Individual or group counseling provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP to assist the parent(s) of special education 

students in better understanding and meeting their child's needs and may 

include parenting skills or other pertinent issues. IEP required parent 

counseling is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling 

program. X

5 CCR Section 3051.11;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(8)

525 Social work services: Social work services, provided by a qualified 

individual pursuant to an IEP, include, but are not limited to, preparing a 

social or developmental history of a child with a disability, group and 

individual counseling with the child and family, working with those problems 

in a child's living situation (home, school, and community) that affect the 

child's adjustment in school, and mobilizing school and community resources 

to enable the child to learn as effectively as possible in his or her educational 

program. Social work services are expected to supplement the regular 

guidance and counseling program. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.13;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34(c)(14)

530 Psychological services: These services, provided by a credentialed or 

licensed psychologist pursuant to an IEP, include interpreting assessment 

results for parents and staff in implementing the IEP, obtaining and 

interpreting information about child behavior and conditions related to 

learning, and planning programs of individual and group counseling and 

guidance services for children and parents. These services may include 

consulting with other staff in planning school programs to meet the special 

needs of children as indicated in the IEP. IEP required psychological services 

are expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program. 
X

5 CCR  Section 3051.10; 

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(10)

535 Behavior intervention services: A systematic implementation of procedures 

designed to promote lasting, positive changes in the student's behavior 

resulting in greater access to a variety of community settings, social contacts, 

public events, and placement in the least restrictive environment. 
X

 5 CCR  Section 3001(d);

34 CFR  Section

300.34 (c)(10)

540 Day treatment services: Structured education, training, and support 

services to address the student’s mental health needs.
X

Health & Safety Code, 

Div.2, Chap.3, Article 1, 

Section 1502(a)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

545 Residential treatment services: A 24-hour, out-of-home placement that 

provides intensive therapeutic services to support the educational program. 

X

Welfare and Institutions 

Code, 

Part 2, Chapter 2.5, 

Art. 1, Section 5671

610 Specialized services for low incidence disabilities: Low incidence 

services are defined as those provided to the student population who have 

orthopedic impairment (OI), visual impairment (VI), who are deaf, hard of 

hearing (HH), or deaf-blind (DB). Typically, services are provided in 

education settings by an itinerant teacher or an itinerant teacher/specialist. 

Consultation is provided to the teacher, staff, and parents as needed. These 

services must be clearly written in the student's IEP, including frequency and 

duration of the services to the student. X

5 CCR  sections 

3051.16, 3051.18;

34 CFR  Section 300.34

710 Specialized deaf and hard of hearing services: These services include 

speech therapy, speech reading, auditory training, and/or instruction in the 

student's mode of communication. Rehabilitative and educational services; 

adapting curricula, methods, and the learning environment; and special 

consultation to students, parents, teachers, and other school personnel. X

5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;

34 CFR  Section 300.34

715 Interpreter services: Sign language interpretation of spoken language to 

individuals, whose communication is normally sign language, by a qualified 

sign language interpreter.  This includes conveying information through the 

sign system of the student or consumer and tutoring students regarding class 

content through the sign system of the student. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(4)

720 Audiological services: These services include measurements of acuity, 

monitoring amplification, and frequency modulation system use. Consultation 

services with teachers, parents, or speech pathologists must be identified in 

the IEP as to reason, frequency, and duration of contact; infrequent contact 

is considered assistance and would not be included. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.2;

34 CFR  Section 

300.34 (c)(1)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

725 Specialized vision services: This is a broad category of services provided 

to students with visual impairments. It includes assessment of functional 

vision; curriculum modifications necessary to meet the student's educational 

needs including Braille, large type, and aural media; instruction in areas of 

need; concept development and academic skills; communication skills 

including alternative modes of reading and writing; and social, emotional, 

career, vocational, and independent living skills. It may include coordination 

of other personnel providing services to the students such as transcribers, 

readers, counselors, orientation and mobility specialists, career/vocational 

staff, and others, and collaboration with the student's classroom teacher. 
X

5 CCR  Section 3030(d);

30 EC  Section 56364.1

730 Orientation and mobility: Students with identified visual impairments are 

trained in body awareness and to understand how to move. Students are 

trained to develop skills to enable them to travel safely and independently 

around the school and in the community. It may include consultation services 

to parents regarding their children requiring such services according to an 

IEP. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.34 

(c)(7)

735 Braille transcription: Any transcription services to convert materials from 

print to Braille. It may include textbooks, tests, worksheets, or anything 

necessary for instruction. The transcriber should be qualified in English 

Braille as well as Nemeth Code (mathematics) and be certified by 

appropriate agency. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.8 

(c)(13)

740 Specialized orthopedic services: Specially designed instruction related to 

the unique needs of students with orthopedic disabilities, including 

specialized materials and equipment.

X

5 CCR  sections 

3030(e), 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.8 

(c)(8)

745 Reading services
X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

750 Note taking services: Any specialized assistance given to the student for 

the purpose of taking notes when the student is unable to do so 

independently. This may include, but is not limited to, copies of notes taken 

by another student or transcription of tape-recorded information from a class 

or aide designated to take notes. This does not include instruction in the 

process of learning how to take notes. X

5 CCR Section 3051.16

755 Transcription services: Any transcription service to convert materials from 

print to a mode of communication suitable for the student. This may also 

include dictation services as it may pertain to textbooks, tests, worksheets, or 

anything necessary for instruction. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16

760 Recreation services, includes therapeutic recreation: Therapeutic 

recreation and specialized instructional programs designed to assist pupils to 

become as independent as possible in leisure activities, and when possible 

and appropriate, facilitate the pupil's integration into general recreation 

programs. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.15; 

34 CFR  Section 300.34 

(c)(11)

820 College awareness: College awareness is the result of acts that promote 

and increase student learning about higher education opportunities, 

information, and options that are available including, but not limited to, career 

planning, course prerequisites, admission eligibility, and financial aid. X

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

830 Vocational assessment, counseling, guidance, and career assessment: 
Organized educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of 

individuals for paid or unpaid employment, and may include provision for 

work experience, job coaching, development and/or placement, and 

situational assessment. This includes career counseling to assist a student in 

assessing his/her aptitudes, abilities, and interests in order to make realistic 

career decisions. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

840 Career awareness: Transition services include a provision for self-advocacy, 

career planning, and career guidance. This also emphasizes the need for 

coordination between these provisions and the Perkins Act to ensure that 

students with disabilities in middle schools will be able to access vocational 

education funds. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

850 Work experience education: Work experience education means organized 

educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of individuals 

for paid or unpaid employment, or for additional preparation for a career 

requiring other than a baccalaureate or advanced degree. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

855 Job Coaching: Job coaching is a service that provides assistance and 

guidance to an employee who may be experiencing difficulty with one or 

more aspects of the daily job tasks and functions. The service is provided by 

a job coach who is highly successful, skilled and trained on the job who can 

determine how the employee that is experiencing difficulty learns best and 

formulate a training plan to improve job performance. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

860 Mentoring: Mentoring is a sustained coaching relationship between a 

student and teacher through ongoing involvement. The mentor offers 

support, guidance, encouragement and assistance as the learner encounters 

challenges with respect to a particular area such as acquisition of job skills. 

Mentoring can be either formal, as in planned, structured instruction, or 

informal that occurs naturally through friendship, counseling, and collegiality 

in a casual, unplanned way. X

5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections 

300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

865 Agency linkages (referral and placement): Service coordination and case 

management that facilitates the linkage of individualized education programs 

under this part and individualized family service plans under part C with 

individualized service plans under multiple Federal and State programs, such 

as title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (vocational rehabilitation), title XIX 

of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), and title XVI of the Social Security Act 

(supplemental security income). X

30 EC  Section 56341.5 (f);

 34 CFR  Section 300.344 

(3)(b)

870 Travel training (includes mobility training)

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;

34 CFR  sections 300.39 

(c)(7)

890 Other transition services: These services may include program 

coordination, case management and meetings, and crafting linkages 

between schools and between schools and postsecondary agencies. X

900** Other special education/related services: Any other specialized service 

required for a student with a disability to receive educational benefit. X

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 11



 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified

Not 

Currently

 Utilized

Compliance Standard

(Legal Requirement*) 

*   B&PC –Business and Proessional Codes
    CCR –California Code of Regulations
    CFR –Code of Federal Regulations
    EC –Education Code
    GC –Government Code
** Use of CASEMIS Code 900 necessitates further explanation. Please list the 
    other special education/related services to be provided as Code 900 on the  
    form ASP-01b: Customized Service Descriptions.  

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 11



Special Education Local Plan Area:

Customized Service Descriptions

Yes No

Did you use Code 900, Other Special Education/Related Services, in 
your Physical Location of Services plan? 

Please describe the services that fall under the use of this code. 

Has the Special Education 

Local Plan Area (SELPA) 

included:

  - Name of service?

  - Description of service?

  - How service provided?

California Department of Education

Form ASP-01b (rev Feb 2017)

Special Education Division

CASEMIS 

Code

Special Education Service Category Descriptions 

Birth–21 Years

Compliance 

Standard

(Legal 

Requirement)

For CDE Use Only

Findings/

Comments
Compliance 

Meets

Compliance



Page _______ of _______ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP-02a (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area: Sierra County       
Local Educational Agency (LEA): Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Annual Service Plan (001) 

Location 
List the site name and type of 
facility providing services to 

students enrolled in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location  
List the California Special Education Management 

Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with each 
service that is provided at the location listed in the left-

hand column. 

Site Name 
Type 

Of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

Loyalton Elementary 10 330 340 350 415 425 450 510 515 530 535 

  740          

            

Loyalton High School 10 330 340 350 415 425 450 510 515 530 535 

  750 755 820 830 840 850 855 860 865 890 

            

Downieville Elementary 10 330 340 350 415 425 450 510 515 530 535 

            

Downieville Junior/Senior 

High 

10 330 340 350 510 515 530 535 750   

            

            

Sierra Pass 20 330 340 350 510 820 830 840 850 855 860 

  865 890         

            

            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            

 
 Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22:   

10–Public Day School 11–Public Residential School 15–Special Education Center/Facility 

19–Other Public School/Facilities 20–Continuation School 
22–Alternative Work Education Center/  
      Work Study Program 

24–Independent Study 31–Community School 
55–Charter School (operated by an LEA/ 
      District/County Office of Education) 

56–Charter School (operating as an LEA)   

 



 

Page ____ of  _____ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP–02a 002 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area: Sierra County   
Local Educational Agency (LEA): Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Other Facilities (002) 

Location  
List the site name and type of facility 

providing services to students enrolled 
in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location  
List the California Special Education Information 

System (CASEMIS) code associated with each service 
that is provided at the location listed in the left-hand 

column. 

Site Name 
Type 

of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

None 32         

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 
Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22: 

30–Juvenile Court School 32–Correctional Institution or  
Incarceration Facility  

40–Home Instruction 

45–Hospital Facility 50–Community College 51–Adult Education Program 

70–Nonpublic Day School 71/72–Nonpublic Residential School 79–Nonpublic Agency 

 



 
 

 
Page ____  of  _____ 

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division 
ASP–02a 003 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area: Sierra County     
Local Educational Agency (LEA): Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

  
Infant Services (003) 

Location  
List the site name and type of facility 

providing services to students enrolled 
in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location 
List the California Special Education Management 

Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with 
each service that is provided at the location listed in the 

left-hand column. 

Site Name  
Type 

of 
Facility 

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

None          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 
Use these codes to identify the type of facility where Infant Services (ages 0–3) are provided: 

00–No School (Ages 0–5 only) 10–Public Day School 

11–Public Residential School 19–Other Public School/Facilities 

40–Home 45–Hospital Facility 

62–Child Development or Child Care Facility 65–Extended Day Care 

 



 
 

 
Page ____ of _____ 

California Department of Education                                                                                  Special Education Division 
ASP–02a 004 (rev Feb 2017) 

 
Special Education Local Plan Area: Sierra County     
Local Educational Agency (LEA): Sierra Plumas Joint Unified 

 
Pre-School Services (004) 

Location  
List the site name and type of facility 

providing services to students 
enrolled in the LEA. 

Services Provided at this Location  
List the California Special Education Management 
Information System (CASEMIS) code associated 
with each service that is provided at the location 

listed in the left-hand column. 

Site Name 
Type  

Of 
Facility  

CASEMIS Service Codes 
(Use of Code 900 requires further explanation) 

Loyalton Elementary 10 330 415 425 450   

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 
Use these numbers to identify the type of facility where Pre-School Services (ages 3–5) are provided: 

40–Home Instruction 45–Hospital Facility 

61–Head Start Program 62–Child Development or Child Care Facility 

63–State Preschool Program 64–Private Preschool 

65–Extended Day Care Program  

 



California Department of Education                Special Education Division 
Form SED-LP-1 (Revised 3/2016) 

Certification of Participation, Compatibility,  
and Compliance Assurances 

 
1. Designate the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Option: 
     [ X  ] Single District                                  [   ] Multiple District                               [   ] District/County 
SELPA Code 
46-10462 

SELPA Name 
Sierra County SELPA 

Application Date 
June 12th, 2018 

SELPA Address 
109 Beckwith Street, P.O. Box 955 

SELPA City 
Loyalton 

SELPA Zip Code 
96118 

SELPA Director Name (Print) 
Heidi Bethke 

Director Telephone Number 
(530) 993-4485 x 170 

Director E-mail 
hbethke@spjusd.org 

2. Certification of Assurances by the Designated Administrative and Fiscal Agency for this 
Program (Responsible Local Agency/Administrative Unit [RLA/AU]) 

Designated RLA/AU Name 
 
Sierra County Office of Education 

RLA/AU Address 
 
109 Beckwith Street, P.O. Box 955 

RLA/AU City 
 
Loyalton 

RLA/AU Zip Code 
 
96118 

Name of RLA/AU Superintendent 
 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D. 

Superintendent Phone Number 
 
(530) 993-1660 x 110 

Superintendent E-mail 
 
mgrant@spjusd.org 

Date of Governing Board Approval 
 
June 12th, 2018 

 

I certify that this plan has been adopted by the appropriate local board(s) (district/county) and is the basis for the operation and 
administration of special education programs; and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of 
state and federal laws, regulations, and state policies and procedures, including compliance with the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act, 20 United States Code (U.S.C.) 1400 et seq, and implementing regulations under 34 Code of Federal Regulations 
Parts 300 and 303, 29 U.S.C. 705 (20) and 794–794b, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended, the provisions of the 
California Education Code (EC) Part 30, and Chapter 3 Division 1 of Title V of the California Code of Regulations. 
Signature of RLA/AU Superintendent 
 
 

Date 
 

3.  Certification of Compatibility by the County Superintendent of Schools  
Name of County Office of Education (COE) 

Sierra County Office of Education 
COE Address 
 
109 Beckwith Street, P.O. Box 955 

COE City 
 
Loyalton 

COE Zip Code 
 
96118 

Name of COE Superintendent  
 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D. 

Superintendent Phone Number 
 
(530) 993-1660 x 110 

Superintendent E-mail 
 
mgrant@spjusd.org 

Pursuant to EC Section 56140, I certify that this plan ensures that all individuals with exceptional needs residing within the county, 
including those enrolled in alternative education programs, including but not limited to, alternative schools, charter schools, 
opportunity schools and classes, community day schools operated by school districts, community schools operated by the county 
office of education, and juvenile court schools, will have access to appropriate special education programs and related services. 

Signature of County Superintendent or Authorized Representative Date 
 
 

4. Certification of the Community Advisory Committee 
(Complete Form SED-LP-2) 
For Department of Education Use Only 

Recommended for Approval by the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 

Date: By: Approval Date: 

 











  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Adopted Budget 
2018/19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 12, 2018 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D./Superintendent 

 
  



    

SCOE 2018-2019 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 6 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2018-2019 Adopted Budget  

Presented June 12, 2018 

 

 

Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) is required by law to adopt a budget each year by June 30th of the preceding year.  

The budget encompasses the General Fund of the district, and is also accompanied by a cash-flow projection and a multi-year 

projection covering the 2018/19 budget and two subsequent years.  

 

The following narrative provides the major assumption used in the preparation of the County’s 

2018-2019 June Adopted Budget.  Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just 

that-projections, not forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various factors change, they 

are not predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions based on a given 

set of assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is a higher implied reliability factor than 

for projections.  Projections will change anytime the underlying factors change. 

 

 

 

The Big Picture 

 

The May Revision confirms that General Fund revenue assumptions have increased substantially since the release of the 

Governor’s January budget. The administration attributes these gains primarily to short-term personal and corporate income 

gains stemming from the 2017 stock market rally and the federal tax cut enacted last December 

  

Because of the strong revenues from January to May, the May Revision maintains full funding of the Local Control Funding 

Formula (LCFF) and the Rainy Day Budget Reserve (Prop 2, 2014). As with the January proposed budget, the Governor 

warns that California will soon face an economic downturn, noting that California’s economic recovery has lasted four years 

longer than average and that “now is a time to save; not a time to make pricey new promises we can’t keep.” Accordingly, the 

Governor stated that most of the revenue increases have materialized since January will be invested in one-time expenditures 

and paying down debts and liabilities. 

  

Fiscal prudence is in order as uncertainty exists surrounding several 

significant administration proposals and assumptions for the 2018-19 

budget: 

 

 The proposed $2.042 billion in one-time discretionary funding 

will be the budget balancer used to address legislative priorities. 

LEA’s that budget these funds in their 2018-19 multiyear 

projections need to ensure that the spending plan is flexible, 

scalable and adjustable. SCOE has not projected the one-time 

funding beyond 2018-19 as those funds have not been promised 

to continue in the out years. 

 
 The possible negative impacts of the federal budget on California’s budget are uncertain, as the economic and revenue 

forecasts used to build the Governor’s budget do not consider the federal tax changes enacted last December. 

 
 Beginning in 2019-20, LCFF growth estimates will be limited to discretionary COLA adjustments. 

 
 

According to the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) employment growth in California this year has slowed from recent 

years, with a noteworthy stagnation in reported growth in the state’s professional and technical services sector (which includes 



    

SCOE 2018-2019 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 6 

many technology jobs). The LAO anticipates slower job growth will continue in California through at least 2019. This is 

consistent with an expected slowing of national job growth and a cooling of growth in California technology jobs as well as a 

tight labor market with relatively low unemployment rates. 

  

The budget outlook for 2018-19 faces significant uncertainly from three sources: (1) revenue changes, (2) decisions by the 

federal government or the Governor, and (3) other notable costs that are not wholly reflected in the LAO outlook. There are 

many factors which will continue to impact the budget. A new Governor will be taking office, voters could change policies 

that affect the state’s budget condition as well as decisions by a variety of other entities have significant implication for the 

budget. Impact from decisions made by the Legislature, State Executive Branch, Federal Government and Retirement Systems 

all can influence state costs.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  



    

SCOE 2018-2019 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 6 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the second interim and are reflected in the 2017/18 

Estimated Actuals. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula 

Local Control Funding Formula had an increase of $33,608.  

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue is projected to decrease by ($37,638) for the following reasons:  

 

             Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 

 One Time McKinney-Vento Award         ($37,638) 

Net Change    ($37,638) 
 

State Revenue 

State Revenues decreased by ($38,938) for the following reason: 

 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 One Time Mandated Cost increase $  3,185 

 Prop 39 program concluded  ($15,000) 

 TUPE decrease    ($73,295) 

 Foster Youth increase   $21,591 

 Special Education RS6500 increase $24,581 

Net Change   ($38,938) 

 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenue had no change in revenues.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$843,570; 41%

Federal ; $162,418; 
8%

Other State; 
$678,741; 33%

Other Local; 
$307,293; 15%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; $52,121; 
3%

Total Resources $1,992,022



    

SCOE 2018-2019 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 

Description 2014-2015 

Actuals 

2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Actuals 

2017-2018 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2018-2019 

Adopted 

Budget 

LCFF Resources $939,123 $815,910 $775,048 $809,962 $843,570 

Federal  509,486 503,545 162,670 200,056 162,418 

Other State 502,696 701,812 688,441 717,679 678,741 

Other Local 179,217 191,865 340,611 307,293 307,293 

Transfer-in SRS 53,084 54,498 13,360 13,360 52,121 

Total $2,183,606 $2,267,630 $1,980,130 $2,048,350 $2,044,143 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $199,226 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the 2017-18 

Estimated Actuals. 

 

 

 
 
Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2014-2015 

Actuals 

2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Actuals 

2017-2018 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2018-2019 

Adopted 

Budget 

Certificated $  332,449 $  377,398 $  504,973 $  558,519 $  704,114 

Classified 313,380 343,329 374,437 388,965 428,923 

Benefits 302,186               330,649 418,617 471,807 566,730 

Books & Supplies 59,473 29,150 46,569 91,635 77,241 

Services & 

Operating 

399,782 402,702 503,111 661,980 614,788 

Capital Outlay 13,089 6,264 81,843 42,664 23,000 

Other Outgo 519,317 389,641 17,424 24,428 24,428 

Total $1,939,676 $1,879,133 $1,946,974 2,239,998 2,439,224 

Certificated; 
$704,114; 29%

Classified; 
$428,923; 18%

Benefits; $566,730; 
23%

Books & Supplies; 
$77,241; 3%

Services & 
Operating; 

$614,788; 25%

Capital Outlay; 
$23,000; 1%

Outgo to District; 
$24,428; 1%

Total Expenses  $2,439,224



    

SCOE 2018-2019 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2014-15 $2,305,842 actuals 

2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals  

2016-17 $2,698,358 actuals 

2017-18 $2,539,269 estimated actuals 

2018-19 $2,144,188 projected 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  6.00 

Superintendent    .15 

Administrative  2.00  18.96 FTE 

Classified             7.31 

Confidential  3.00 

Unrepresented    .50 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

Comments 

 

1. COLA of 3.00% on LCFF. 

2. One-Time discretionary revenue for mandated claims in 2018/19 of $344 per ADA. 

3. One-time increase for Forest Reserve/SRS funding in 2018/19. 

4. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

17,536.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $270,852. 

5. PERS rate increase from 15.531% to 18.062%, for a projected annual cost of $75,767. 

6. STRS rate increase from 14.43% to 16.28%.for a projected annual cost of $138,613. 

7. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide foster youth, business, curriculum, and technology 

services. 

8. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $52,121. 

9. Positive Certification 

10. Projected ending cash balance: $2,144,188 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2014-15 actuals 243,930 

2015-16 actuals 388,497 

2016-17 actuals 36,578 

2017-18 estimated actuals (191,648) 

2018-19 projected (395,081) 



Reviewed By:

$:

%:
Year: 17/18 18/19 Pos (Neg) % 17/18 18/19 Pos (Neg) % 17/18 18/19 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Revenues

Revenue Limit Funding8010-8099 809,962        843,570        33,608         4.15% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 809,962        843,570        33,608         4.15%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 200,056        162,418        (37,638)       -18.81% 2 200,056        162,418        (37,638)       -18.81%

State Revenues 8300-8599 5,419           8,546           3,127           57.70% 1 712,260        670,195        (42,065)       -5.91% 717,679        678,741        (38,938)       -5.43%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 302,793        302,793        -                   0.00% 4,500           4,500           -                   0.00% 307,293        307,293        -                   0.00%

Total Revenues 1,118,174     1,154,909     36,735          3.29% 916,816        837,113        (79,703)        -8.69% 2,034,990     1,992,022     (42,968)        -2.11%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 190,108        274,771        84,663         44.53% 3 368,411        429,343        60,932         16.54% 7 558,519        704,114        145,595       26.07%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 263,143        256,572        (6,571)          -2.50% 125,822        172,351        46,529         36.98% 8 388,965        428,923        39,958         10.27%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 251,120        299,046        47,926         19.08% 4 220,687        267,684        46,997         21.30% 9 471,807        566,730        94,923         20.12%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 27,576          19,557          (8,019)          -29.08% 5 64,059          57,684          (6,375)         -9.95% 91,635          77,241          (14,394)        -15.71%

Operating Expenditures5000-5999 372,160        370,222        (1,938)          -0.52% 289,820        244,566        (45,254)       -15.61% 10 661,980        614,788        (47,192)        -7.13%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 20,000          20,000          -                   0.00% 22,664          3,000           (19,664)        -86.76% 11 42,664          23,000          (19,664)        -46.09%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 24,428          24,428          -                   0.00%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (10,612)        (6,568)          4,044           -38.11% 6 10,612          6,568           (4,044)         -38.11% 6 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,137,923     1,258,028     120,105        10.55% 1,102,075     1,181,196     79,121          7.18% 2,239,998     2,439,224     199,226        8.89%

Rev less Exp (19,749)        (103,119)       (83,370)        422.15% (185,259)       (344,083)       (158,824)       85.73% (205,008)       (447,202)       (242,194)       118.14%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 13,360          52,121          38,761         290.13% 12 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 13,360          52,121          38,761         290.13%

Contributions 8980-8999 (152,700)       (344,083)       (191,383)      125.33% 13 152,700        344,083        191,383        125.33% 13 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (139,340)       (291,962)       (152,622)       109.53% 152,700        344,083        191,383        125.33% 13,360          52,121          38,761          290.13%

Change in Fund Bal (159,089)      (395,081)      (235,992)      148.34% (32,559)       -                  32,559         -100.00% (191,648)      (395,081)      (203,433)      106.15%

Beg Fund Bal 2,698,358     2,539,269     (159,089)       -5.90% 32,559          -                   (32,559)        -100.00% 2,730,917     2,539,269     (191,648)       -7.02%

Adjustments -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,698,358     2,539,269     (159,089)       -5.90% 32,559          -                   (32,559)        -100.00% 2,730,917     2,539,269     (191,648)       -7.02%

End Fund Bal 2,539,269     2,144,188     (395,081)       -15.56% -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! 2,539,269     2,144,188     (395,081)       -15.56%

Non Spendable 500              500              500              500              

Restricted  -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0!

Comitted 156,666        186,013        29,347         18.73% -                   #DIV/0! 156,666        186,013        29,347         18.73%

Assigned -                   500,000        500,000       #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -                   500,000        500,000       #DIV/0!

REU 225,000        245,000        20,000         -                   225,000        245,000        20,000         

Unassigned 2,157,103     1,212,675     (924,428)      -42.86% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,157,103     1,212,675     (924,428)      -42.86%

REU is: 10.0% 10.0%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2018/19 Adopted Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet
Materiality Threshold



1 One time Unrestricted Mandated Claims Reimbursement revenue increase approx $3,000

2 McKinney Vento Homeless program discontinued in FY18/19. Reduced restricted revenue approx <$38k>

3 Unrestricted Certificated Salary expenditure increase approx. $82k - Megan Meschery moved to SCOE from SPJUSD. Increase in certificated substitutes approx $1k.

4 Increase in Unrestricted Benefits costs: STRS approx $18k, PERS approx $8k, H&W approx $19k, W/C approx $2,500

5 Unrestricted Lottery expenditures reduced for Materials & Supplies approx <$8k> to balance anticipated revenues.

6 Indirect Costs reduced due to CDE adjustment for 18/19 ICR at 0.87%. Approx <$4k>

7 Restricted Certificated Salary expenditures increased approx $61k: Special Education increased approx $90k, TUPE reduced approx <$10k>, McKinney Vento reduced approx <$19k>.

8 Restricted Classified Salary expenditures increased approx $46,500: Special Education increased approx $50k, Foster Youth reduced approx <$1,500>, McKinney Vento reduced approx <$2k>

9 Increase in restricted Benefits costs: STRS approx $17k, PERS approx $10k, H&W approx $13k, W/C approx $3,500, other small benefits increase approx $3k

10 Restricted McKinney Vento expenditures reduced approx <$9k>, TUPE reduced approx <$57k> and Foster Youth increased approx $21k.

11 Restricted Prop 39 expenditures reduced approx <$20k> program not continuing.

12 Unrestricted Forest Reserve/SRS funding increased for FY18/19 approx $39k.

13 Special Education contribution from Unrestricted to Restricted increase approx $191k

14 Unrestricted Forest Reserve/SRS funding increased for FY18/19 approx $39k.

15 Special Education contribution from Unrestricted to Restricted increase approx $191k

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2018/19 Adopted Budget



Sierra County Office of Education

2018/19 Adopted Budget

$: 0

%: 0%

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 843,570        -              843,570         863,900       -            863,900       888,089       -              888,089        

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               162,418       162,418         -              162,418     162,418       -              162,418       162,418        

State Revenues 8300-8599 8,546           670,195       678,741         5,229           670,195     675,424       5,229           670,195       675,424        

Local Revenues 8600-8799 302,793        4,500           307,293         302,793       4,500         307,293       302,793       4,500           307,293        

Transfers In 8910-8979 52,121         -              52,121           13,360         -            13,360         13,360         -              13,360         

Contributions 8980-8999 (344,083)      344,083       -                (352,897)      352,897     -              (364,425)      364,425       -               

Total Revenues 862,947        1,181,196     2,044,143      832,385       1,190,010   2,022,395    845,046       1,201,538    2,046,584     

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 274,771        429,343       704,114         278,591       435,072     713,663       282,562       440,963       723,525        

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 256,572        172,351       428,923         261,747       174,783     436,530       267,537       178,220       445,757        

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 299,046        267,684       566,730         308,464       269,457     577,921       310,787       271,657       582,444        

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 19,557         57,684         77,241           19,557         56,525       76,082         19,557         56,525         76,082         

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 370,222        244,566       614,788         370,222       244,605     614,827       370,222       244,605       614,827        

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 20,000         3,000           23,000           20,000         3,000         23,000         20,000         3,000           23,000         

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         -              24,428           24,428         -            24,428         24,428         -              24,428         

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (6,568)          6,568           -                (6,568)         6,568         -              (6,568)          6,568           -               

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -              -                -              -            -              -              -              -               

Total Expenditures 1,258,028     1,181,196     2,439,224      1,276,441    1,190,010   2,466,451    1,288,525    1,201,538    2,490,063     

Rev less Exp (395,081)      -              (395,081)        (444,056)      -            (444,056)      (443,479)      -              (443,479)      

Change in Fund Bal (395,081)      -              (395,081)       (444,056)     -            (444,056)     (443,479)     -              (443,479)      

Beg Fund Bal 2,539,269     -              2,539,269      2,144,188    -            2,144,188    1,700,132    -              1,700,132     

Adjustments -               -              -                -            -              -              -               

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,539,269     -              2,539,269      2,144,188    -            2,144,188    1,700,132    -              1,700,132     

End Fund Bal 2,144,188     -              2,144,188      1,700,132    -            1,700,132    1,256,653    -              1,256,653    

Non Spendable 500              -              500               500             -            500             500             -              500              

Restricted  -               -              -                -            -              -              -               

Comitted 186,013        -              186,013         215,360       -            215,360       215,360       -              215,360        

Assigned 500,000        -              500,000         -            -              -              -               

REU 245,000        -              245,000         245,000       -            245,000       245,000       -              245,000        

Unassigned 1,212,675     -              1,212,675      1,239,272    -            1,239,272    795,793      -              795,793       

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection
Materiality Threshold

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21





































































































































































SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

              

CERTIFICATED SUBSTITUTE PAYRATE SCHEDULE 

Description  Daily Rate 

  

Full Day (Morning and Afternoon Session) $120.00  

Morning Session (to lunch break) $70.00  

Afternoon Session (after lunch break) $70.00  
Long Term (rate applies commencing 21st 
consecutive day of substitute for same teacher) $145.00  

  
 

 

 

Effective July 1, 2018 

Adopted __________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Z:Salary schedule/certificated substitute rate_June 2018 



1 
 

POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

June 2018 
 

BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which (1) adds immigration status to the categories of 

characteristics that are protected against discrimination, (2) requires parent/guardian notification of their 

child's right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, and (3) mandates 

that districts adopt policy consistent with a model policy developed by the California Attorney General, 

which includes a statement regarding equitable services. Policy also reflects provisions of the Attorney 

General's model policy and NEW LAW (SB 31) which prohibit districts from compiling or assisting in the 

compilation of a registry based on immigration status, religion, or other specified characteristics. 

 

BP/AR 3514 - Environmental Safety 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 746) which provides that, if a community water 

system finds lead above specified levels in a school's potable water system, the district must notify 

parents/guardians, shut down fountains and faucets, and provide a source of drinking water to students. Policy 

also deletes details regarding district strategies that are duplicated in the AR. Regulation also updates material 

related to particulate filters in school buses and carbon monoxide detectors to reflect current law. 

 

BP 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to expand discussion of possible recruitment incentives, including subsidized housing 

programs for teachers and other employees and NEW LAW (AB 99) which establishes the California 

Educator Development grant program to assist districts with attracting and supporting the preparation and 

continued learning of teachers, principals, and other school leaders. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 

168) which prohibits districts from seeking salary history information about an applicant and from relying 

on salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment or the salary to offer 

an applicant, unless the salary information is disclosable under state or federal law or the applicant voluntarily 

discloses the information without prompting.  

 

BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to provide a strong statement of the board's commitment to provide a safe work environment 

that is free of sexual harassment and intimidation and to align the process for filing complaints of sexual 

harassment with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW 

(SB 396) which requires districts to post a Department of Fair Employment and Housing poster on 

transgender rights and, if the district has 50 or more employees, to provide training to supervisors regarding 

harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation. 

 

AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 

(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 63) which extends the requirement to grant parental leave to 

an eligible employee for the purpose of bonding with a child after the birth, adoption, or foster care placement 

of the child to any district that employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of the worksite where the employee 

requesting the leave is employed. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 731) which entitles an 

employee who is a military veteran or current member of the California National Guard or federal reserve 

component to 10 days of additional sick leave for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a 

qualifying military service-connected disability, effective on either the date the U.S. Department of Veterans 

Affairs rates the employee's disability or on the first day the employee begins or returns to employment after 

active duty, whichever is later. 

 

 

 



2 
 

AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 

(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 63) which extends the requirement to grant parental leave to 

any district that employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of the worksite where the employee requesting 

the leave is employed. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 731) which entitles an employee 

who is a military veteran or current member of the California National Guard or federal reserve component 

to 12 days of additional sick leave for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a qualifying military 

service-connected disability, effective on either the date the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs rates the 

employee's disability or on the first day the employee begins or returns to employment after active duty, 

whichever is later. 



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
  

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0410 

 

The NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES 

 

Note:  Education Code 234.1 mandates districts to adopt policy and regulations to ensure that district programs 

and activities are free from unlawful discrimination.  In accordance with various provisions of state and federal 

law, discrimination in education programs and activities is unlawful when it is based on certain actual or perceived 

characteristics of an individual. Education Code 220, as amended by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 2017), prohibits 

discrimination based on race or ethnicity, nationality, immigration status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender 

identity, gender expression, religion, or any other characteristic contained in the definition of hate crimes in Penal 

Code 422.55. Government Code 11135 prohibits discrimination based on all the foregoing characteristics and on 

age, disability, and an individual's genetic information. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d-

2000d-7) prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin. Title IX (20 USC 1681-1688) 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (42 USC 12101-12213) 

and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794) prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability.  

For policy language protecting students against discrimination and harassment, see BP/AR 5145.3 - 

Nondiscrimination/Harassment and BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

Education Code 260 and 5 CCR 4900-4965 require the Governing Board of Education to monitor district 

compliance with these state and federal laws. The federal laws are enforced by the Office for Civil Rights of the 

U.S. Department of Education, and the California Department of Education may investigate complaints regarding 

discrimination pursuant to 5 CCR 4600-4670. 

 

Similarly, Government Code 12940 provides protections for employees, job applicants, unpaid interns, and 

volunteers against unlawful discrimination and harassment.  For policy language addressing these protections as 

they relate to volunteers, see BP 1240 - Volunteer Assistance, and in relation to employees, unpaid interns, and 

job applicants, see BP 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. 

 

The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in education. 

district programs and activities. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from 

unlawful discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, 

color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, 

ethnicity, age, religion, marital orstatus, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, 

sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or, gender expression, or genetic information; thea 

perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one 

or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 



2 

 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 
Note:  Education Code 234.7, as added by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 2017), mandates that districts adopt 

policy consistent with the California Attorney General's model policy contained in the Office of the Attorney 

General's publication Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies 

to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues. That model policy includes statements 

regarding the equitable provision of services and a prohibition against the use of school resources or data for 

creating a registry based on specific characteristics. In addition, Government Code 8310.3, as added by SB 31 (Ch. 

826, Statutes of 2017), prohibits districts from disclosing information about immigration status or religion to 

federal government authorities for use in the compilation of a registry for immigration enforcement or otherwise 

assisting in the creation of such a registry. 

 

All individuals shall be treated equitably in the receipt of district and school services. Personally 

identifiable information collected in the implementation of any district program, including, but not 

limited to, student and family information for the free and reduced-price lunch program, 

transportation, or any other educational program, shall be used only for the purposes of the 

program, except when the Superintendent or designee authorizes its use for another purpose in 

accordance with law. Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by 

others, to compile a list, registry, or database of individuals based on race, gender, sexual 

orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, or immigration status or any other category 

identified above. 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 

 
Note:  Education Code 221.2-221.3 (the California Racial Mascot Act) declare the use of racially derogatory or 

discriminatory school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames to be contrary to an equal education and 

specifically prohibit public schools from using the term "Redskins" as a school or athletic team name, mascot, or 

nickname. The following paragraph expands this prohibition to include any racially derogatory or discriminatory 

athletic team name, mascot, or nickname and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

District programs and activities shall be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory school 

or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames. 

 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 221.5, a district is required to permit a student to participate in sex-segregated 

school programs and activities, including athletic teams and competitions, and to use facilities consistent with the 

student's gender identity, regardless of his/her gender as listed on his/her educational records. See BP/AR 5145.3 

- Nondiscrimination/Harassment. For further information, see CSBA's Updated Legal Guidance:  Protecting 

Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against Sex Discrimination. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually review district programs and activities to ensure the 

removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may 

unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from 

accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to remove 



3 

 

any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and 

recommendations to the Board after each review. 
(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 

 

All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated 

and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 

Procedures. 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 
Note:  Many nondiscrimination laws and regulations contain a notification requirement. For example, pursuant to 

34 CFR 104.8 and 106.9, a district that receives federal aid is required to take "continuing steps" to notify students, 

parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, and applicants for admission and employment that it does 

not discriminate on the basis of disability or sex in its educational programs or activities. In addition, Education 

Code 221.61 requires districts to post specified information relating to Title IX on their web sites. To ensure 

consistent implementation of the laws, the same notification requirement should be adopted for all the protected 

categories as provided in the following paragraph. 

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify students, 

parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and employment, 

and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on nondiscrimination and related 

complaint procedures.  Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, 

catalogthe annual parental notification distributed pursuant to Education Code 48980 and, as 

applicable, in announcements, bulletins, catalogs, handbooks, application formforms, or other 

recruitment materials distributed to these groupsby the district. The notification shall also be 

posted on the district's web site and social media and in district schools and offices, including staff 

lounges, student government meeting rooms, and other prominent locations as appropriate. 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 
Note:  Education Code 234.7, as added by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 2017), requires the following notification. 

Information about the educational rights of all students is contained in the appendix of the Office of the Attorney 

General's publication Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies 

to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues. 

 

In addition, the annual parental notification shall inform parents/guardians of their children's right 

to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, including 

information on educational rights issued by the California Attorney General. Alternatively, such 

information may be provided through any other cost-effective means determined by the 

Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 234.7) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48985, when 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a school speak a single 

primary language other than English, all notices and reports sent to the parents/guardians of these students must 

also be written in the primary language and may be answered by the parent/guardian in English or the primary 

language. In addition, 20 USC 6311 and 6312 require that districts receiving Title I funds provide parent/guardian 

notices in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language that parents/guardians 

understand. 

 



4 

 

The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a 

format that parents/guardians can understand and. In addition, when required by law, in15 percent 

or more of a school's students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials 

shall be translated into that other language. 

 

Access for Individuals with Disabilities 
 

Note:  Pursuant to the ADA and its implementing regulations, 28 CFR 35.150 and 35.151, district facilities must 

be accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Compliance methods may include equipment redesign, 

reassignment of services to accessible buildings, assignment of aides to beneficiaries, home visits, delivery of 

services at alternate accessible sites, and alteration of existing facilities and construction of new facilities. In 

achieving compliance, a district need not make structural changes to existing facilities if other methods are 

effective and the district can demonstrate that the structural change would result in a fundamental alteration in the 

nature of the activity or an undue financial or administrative burden. However, pursuant to 28 CFR 35.151, all 

newly constructed facilities must comply with the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Designs issued by the U.S. 

Department of Justice. 
 

In addition, pursuant to 28 CFR 35.136, a district must permit an individual with a disability to be accompanied 

by a service animal on district premises when, without the animal's assistance, the individual with a disability will 

not be able to access or participate in a district program or activity. For language addressing this mandate, see AR 

6163.2 - Animals at School. Districts with questions about compliance with the ADA should consult with legal 

counsel as appropriate. 

 

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. When structural 

changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with disabilities access to 

programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a 

transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes. 
(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 28 CFR 35.130 and 35.160, the ADA requires districts to provide services and aids to ensure 

that a disabled individual is not excluded from participation or denied a benefit, service, or program on the basis 

of a disability. However, if the district can show that providing such aids and services would fundamentally alter 

the nature of the function, program, or meeting or would be an undue burden, then the district need not provide 

them. 

In addition, Government Code 54953.2 requires that all Board meetings meet the protections of the ADA and 

implementing regulations (28 CFR 35.160 and 36.303). In effect, the district must ensure that such meetings are 

accessible to persons with disabilities and that, upon the request of any person with a disability, disability-related 

accommodations, such as auxiliary aids and services, are made available. 

The U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) has interpreted the ADA and Section 504 of 

the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 to include the requirement that district web sites be accessible to individuals with 

disabilities. See the OCR's June 2010 and May 2011 Dear Colleague Letters and BP 1113 - District and School 

Web Sites. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids 

and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate 

in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity.  These aids and services may include, 

but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, assistive 

technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web sites, 



5 

 

notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large -print materials. 
 (cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Individuals with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability 

that requires special assistance or services.  Reasonable notification should be given prior to thea 

school-sponsored function, program, or meeting. 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 28 CFR 35.107, a district that has 50 or more employees is required to designate at least one 

employee to coordinate the district's efforts to comply with the ADA. The designated employee could be the same 

individual or position responsible for the district's compliance with state and federal laws and regulations 

governing educational programs as identified in the district's uniform complaint procedures. The following 

paragraph, which identifies the person or position identified in the AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as 

the responsible employee, may be modified if the district chooses to designate another person or position. 

 

The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee 

responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state 

federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall receive 

and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and shall 

investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services, activities, 

or facilities. 

 

Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

PO Box 955, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton CA 96118 

530-993-1660 x110 

mgrant@spjusd.org 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

48980  Parental notifications 
48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 

51007  Legislative intent:  state policy 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
8310.3  California Religious Freedom Act 

11000  Definitions 

11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
11138  Rules and regulations 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

54953.2  Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Definition of hate crime 

422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-46874670  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 

1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
2301-2415  Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act 

6311  State plans 

6312  Local education agency plans 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 



6 

 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
2000h-2000h-6  Title IX 

12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 

36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 

104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 
106.9  Dissemination of policy 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

ProvidingUpdated Legal Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against Sex Discrimination, July 

2016 

CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 

Promoting a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School and Secure Learning Environment for All Students, Policy Brief:  Guidance and Model 

Policies to Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 20102018 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 

California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999Fact Sheet, August 2010 
Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010 

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010 

Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 

Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschoolscoalitioncasafeschools.org 
Pacific ADA Center:  http://www.adapacific.org 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:  http://www.ada.gov 

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative:  http://www.w3.org/wai 

 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 

revised: June 12, 2012 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
  

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3514 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY 

 

 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 

Education Code 17070.75 requires each district participating in the state's School Facility Program to have a 

facility inspection system to ensure that each school facility is kept in good repair. Pursuant to Education Code 

17002, a facility is in "good repair" when it is maintained in a manner that ensures that it is clean, safe, and 

functional in accordance with criteria set forth in the Facility Inspection Tool developed by the Office of Public 

School Construction. See AR 3517 - Facilities Inspection. In addition, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA) has developed the Healthy School Environments Assessment Tool (HealthySEAT), a software program 

designed to be customized by districts to conduct voluntary self-assessments of environmental conditions, such as 

chemical management, hazardous materials and waste, indoor and outdoor air quality, moisture/mold control, pest 

control, ultraviolet radiation, and construction/renovation of school facilities.  For further information, see EPA's 

web site. 

 

The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a safe and healthy environment at school 

facilities for students, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee shall 

regularly assess school facilities to identify environmental health risks. He/she and shall establish 

a comprehensive plandevelop strategies to prevent and/or mitigate environmental hazards based 

on a consideration of. He/she shall consider the proven effectiveness of various options, anticipated 

short-term and long-term costs and/or savings to the district, and the potential impact on staff 

attendance, student attendance, and students, including the impact on student achievement and 

attendance. 

 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 

(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

 

Such strategies shall focus on maximizing healthy indoor air quality; monitoring the quality of 

outdoor air and adjusting outdoor activities as necessary; reducing exposure to vehicle emissions; 

minimizing exposure to lead and mercury; reducing the risk of unsafe drinking water; inspecting 

and properly abating asbestos; appropriately storing, using, and disposing of potentially hazardous 

substances; using effective least toxic pest management practices; reducing the risk of foodborne 

illness; and addressing any other environmental hazards identified during facilities inspections. 

 

(cf. Strategies addressed in the district's plan shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the 



2 

 

following: 

1.Ensuring good indoor air quality by maintaining adequate ventilation; using effective 

maintenance operations to reduce dust, mold, mildew, and other indoor air contaminants; and 

considering air quality in the site selection, design, and furnishing of new or remodeled facilities 

 
3510 - Green School Operations) 

(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 

(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules) 

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

 

2.Limiting outdoor activities when necessary due to poor outdoor air quality, including excessive 

smog, smoke, or ozone, or when ultraviolet radiation levels indicate a high risk of harm 
(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules) 

(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education) 

3.Reducing exposure to diesel exhaust and other air contaminants by limiting unnecessary idling 

of school buses and other commercial motor vehicles 

 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 

(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 

(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 

 

4. Minimizing exposure to lead in paint, soil, and drinking water 

5.Inspecting facilities for naturally occurring asbestos and asbestos-containing building materials 

that pose a health hazard due to damage or deterioration and safely removing, encapsulating, 

enclosing, or repairing such materials 

6. Ensuring the proper storage, use, and disposal of potentially hazardous substances 
(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

(cf. 6161.3 - Toxic Art Supplies) 

7. Ensuring the use of effective least toxic pest management practices 
(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 

8.Instituting a food safety program for the storage, preparation, delivery, and service of school 

meals in order to reduce the risk of foodborne illnesses 

 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 

(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 

(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

 
Note:  Health and Safety Code 116277, as added by AB 746 (Ch. 746, Statutes of 2017), requires a community 

water system serving a school to test for lead in the potable water system of the school and, if the school's lead 

level exceeds a defined level, the district must notify parents/guardians, take immediate steps to shut down all 

fountains and faucets where the excess lead levels may exist, and provide a potable source of drinking water to 

students. Schools that have their own water supply, such as a well, are required to test for lead, copper, and other 



3 

 

contaminants in tap water pursuant to other state and federal law and regulations, including 22 CCR 64670-64679 

and 40 CFR 141.80-141.91. See the California Water Boards' "Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of 

Drinking Water in California Schools:  Updated for Assembly Bill 746/Health and Safety Code 116277." For more 

information in regard to lead exposure and remediation, see the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

In developing strategies to promote healthy school environments, the Superintendent or designee 

may consult and collaborate with local environmental protection agencies, health agencies, water 

boards, and other community organizations. 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the district's maintenance and facilities staff, bus 

drivers, food services staff, teachers, and other staff as appropriate with professional development 

regarding their responsibilities in implementing strategies to improve and maintain environmental 

safety at theenvironmentally safe and healthy schools. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development); (cf. 4231 - Staff Development); (cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board, staff, parents/guardians, students, and/or 

governmental agencies, as appropriate, if an environmental hazard is discovered at a school site.  

The notification shall provide information about the district's actions to remedy the hazard and 

may recommend health screening of staff and students. 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

17002  Definition of "good repair" 

17070.75  Facilities inspection 
17582  Deferred maintenance fund 

17590  Asbestos abatement fund 

17608-1761317614  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 
32080-32081  Carbon monoxide devices 

32240-32245  Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act 

48980.3  Notification of pesticides 
49410-49410.7  Asbestos materials containment or removal 

FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 

11401-12408  Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals 
13180-13188  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3543.2  Scope of representation; right to negotiate safety conditions 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

105400-105430  Indoor environmental quality 

113700-114437  California Retail Food Code, sanitation and safety requirements 
116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

14010  Standards for school site selection 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 

337-339  Hazardous substances list 

340-340.2  Occupational safety and health, rights of employees 
1528-15331537  Construction safety orders; exposure to hazards 

5139-5223  Control of hazardous substances 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 
2025  Retrofitting of diesel school buses 

2480  Vehicle idling 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
35001-36100  Lead abatement services 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 

64670-64679  Lead and copper in drinking water 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 

915.1-915.7 California Building Standards Code; carbon monoxide devices 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7 
136-136y  Use of pesticides 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15 



4 

 

2601-2629  Control of toxic substances 
2641-2656   Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1758  Food safety and inspections 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 

141.1-141.723  Drinking water standards 

745.61-745.339  Lead-based paint standards 
763.80-763.99  Asbestos-containing materials in schools 

763.120-763.123  Asbestos worker protections 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Indoor Air Quality:  Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, Policy Brief, July 2008 

Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008 
Food Safety Requirements, Fact Sheet, October 2007 

Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

School Site Selection and Approval Guide, 2000 

Indoor Air Quality, A Guide for Educators, 1995 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 
Report to the Legislature:  Lead Hazards in California's Public Elementary Schools and Child Care Facilities, April 1998 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:  AIR RESOURCES BOARD PUBLICATIONS 

Facts about Truck and Bus Regulation School Bus Provisions, rev. March 22, 2011 
CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD PUBLICATIONS 

Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of Drinking Water in California Schools; Updated for Assembly Bill 746/Health and 

Safety Code 116277, December 15, 2017 
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT PUBLICATIONS 

K-12 Occupancy Classification and Load Factors, IR A-26, rev. April 18, 2012 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY PUBLICATIONS 

A Citizen's Guide to Radon:  The Guide to Protecting Yourself and Your Family from Radon, 2016 

Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools, rev. 2007 
Healthy School Environments Assessment Tool, 2007rev. 2015 

Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools, rev. 2009 
Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings, September 2008 
The ABCs of Asbestos in Schools, rev. August 2003 

Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings, March 2001 

How to Manage Asbestos in School Buildings:  AHERA Designated Person's Self-Study Guide, 1996 
WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

AirNow:  http://www.airnow.gov 
American Association of School Administrators:  http://www.aasa.org 

California Air Resources Board:  http://www.arb.ca.gov 

California Building Standards:  http://www.bsc.ca.gov/codes.aspx 
California Department of Education, Health and Safety:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/hs 

California Department of Pesticide Regulation:  http://www.cdpr.ca.gov 

California Department of Public Health:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov 
California Indoor Air Quality Program: httpState Water Resources Control Board:  https://www.cal-iaq.orgwaterboards.ca.gov 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 

Consumer Product Safety Commission:  http://www.cpsc.gov 

National Center for Environmental Health:  http://www.cdc.gov/nceh 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration:  http://www.osha.gov 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov 

 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 

revised: August 9, 2011 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3514 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY 

 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation may be revised to reflect district practice. 

The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the job position(s) designated to coordinate the district's 

environmental safety programs. 

 

The Superintendent may designate and train one or more employees to oversee and coordinate the 

district's environmental safety program(s). The responsibilities of the coordinator(s) shall include, 

but are not be limited to, overseeing assessments of district facilities, recommending strategies for 

the prevention and mitigation of environmental health risks, ensuring effective implementation of 

environmental safety strategies, and reporting to the Superintendent regarding the district's 

progress in addressing environmental safety concerns. 

 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 

(cf. 3511 - Energy and Water Management) 

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 

(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

 

Indoor Air Quality 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the following strategies are implemented 

inNote:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.  For further information, see the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools. 

 

In order to provide proper ventilation, humidity, and temperature in school facilities and to reduce 

indoor air contaminants, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the following strategies 

are implemented: 

 

1. Mechanically driven heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems shall be operated 

continuously during working hours except under the circumstances specified in 8 CCR 

5142. The systems shall be inspected at least annually and problems corrected within a 

reasonable time. Where the air supply is filtered, the filters shall be replaced or cleaned 

regularly to prevent significant reductions in airflow. Documentation of inspections, tests 

of ventilation rates, and maintenance shall be retained for at least five years.  (8 CCR 5142-

5143)   (cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 

Staff shall not obstructensure that airflow is not obstructed by covering orthe blocking of 

ventilators with posters, furniture, books, or other obstacles. 



2 

 

 

2. School buildingsfacilities shall be regularly inspected for water damage, spills, leaks in 

plumbing and roofs, poor drainage, and improper ventilation so as to preclude the buildup 

of mold and mildew. Wet building materials and furnishings shall be dried within 48 hours 

if possible to prevent mold growth. When evidence of mold or mildew is found, 

maintenance staff or a certified contractor shall locate and repair the source of water 

intrusion and remove or clean moldy materials. 

 

3. Exterior wall and foundation cracks and openings shall be sealed as soon as possible to 

minimize seepage of radon into buildings from surrounding soils. 

 

4. Least toxic pest management practices shall be used to control and manage pests at school 

sites.  (Education Code 17608-17614; Food and Agriculture Code 13182) 
              (cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 

 

5. RoutineThe Superintendent or designee shall install a carbon monoxide detector or alarm 

in all school buildings that contain a fuel-burning appliance, fireplace, or forced-air 

furnace. The device or alarm shall be located in close proximity to the appliance in order 

to accurately detect and alert school personnel of any leakage of carbon monoxide.  (24 

CCR 915.1-915.7) 
 

6. Schedules and practices for routine housekeeping and maintenance schedules and practices 

shall be designed to effectively reduce levels of dust, dirt, and debris.  Plain water, soap 

and water, or low-emission cleaning products shall be used whenever possible. Aerosols, 

including air fresheners and other products containing ozone, shall be avoided to the extent 

possible. 
              (cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 

 

67. Painting of school facilities and maintenance or repair dutiesactivities that require the use 

of potentially harmful substances shall be limited to those times when school is not in 

session.  Following any such activity, the facility shall be properly ventilated with adequate 

time allowed prior to reopening for use by any person. 

 

78. Paints, adhesives, and solvents shall be used and stored in well-ventilated areas.  These 

items shall be purchased in small quantities to avoid storage exposure. 

 

8(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

 

9. To the extent possible, printing and duplicating equipment that may generate indoor air 

pollutants, such as methyl alcohol or ammonia, shall be placed in alocations that are well- 

ventilated area with minimal exposure ofand not frequented by students and staff. 

9 

10. The district's tobacco-free schools policy shall be consistently enforced in order to reduce 

the health risks caused by second-hand smoke. 
              (cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 

 



3 

 

1011. Staff and students shall be asked to refrain from bringing common irritants into the 

classroom, including, but not limited to,such as furred or feathered animals, stuffed toys 

that may collect dust mites, or perfumesscented candles, incense, or air fresheners and from 

using perfume or lotions, when students in the class are known to have allergies, 

asthmacologne, scented lotion or hair spray, nail polish or nail polish remover, or other 

sensitivities to odorspersonal care products that are not fragrance-free in classrooms or 

other enclosed areas or buildings. 
              (cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 

 

Outdoor Air Quality 

 

Note:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.  Forecasts of ozone levels and particle 

pollution are available through the federal AirNow web site and may be printed in local newspapers. The district 

may monitor ultraviolet radiation levels through the EPA's UV Index web site; see BP 5141.7 - Sun Safety. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may monitor local health advisories and outdoor air quality alerts, 

including forecasts of ozone levels, particle pollution, and/or ultraviolet radiation levels, and/or 

temperature and humidity. 

 

Whenever these measures indicate a significant health risk, the Superintendent or designee shall 

communicate with each principal so that outdoor activities, especially those requiring prolonged 

or heavy exertion, may be avoided, limited in duration, or modified as necessary for all persons or 

for persons who may be particularly sensitivesusceptible to the health risk involved. 

 
(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

 

Vehicle IdlingEmissions 

 

Except under the conditions specified in Note:  13 CCR 2480 for which vehicleprohibits idling may be 

necessary, the driver of a school busbuses, student activity bus, or buses, and other commercial motor vehicle 

shall:  (13 CCR 2480) 

 

1.Turn off the bus or vehicle engine upon stopping at a school or vehicles within 100 feet of a school 

and not restart the engine more than 30 seconds before beginning to departexcept under specified 

conditions; see AR 3542 - School Bus Drivers for additional language reflecting these requirements. 

 

2.Not cause or allow the bus or vehicle to idle at any location greater than 100 feet from a school 

for more than five consecutive minutes or for an aggregated period of more than five minutes in 

any one hour 

In order to reduce public exposure to toxic air contaminants, school bus drivers and other drivers 

of commercial motor vehicles shall limit unnecessary idling of vehicles at or near schools in 

accordance with 13 CCR 2480. The Superintendent or designee may also request parents/guardians 

to turn off their vehicles when they are idling on school grounds and encourage students to walk 

and/or bicycle to school. 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation); (cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 



4 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all bus drivers, upon employment and at least 

once(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 
(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 13 CCR 2025, any district that owns, operates, leases, or rents a diesel-fueled, dual-fueled, or 

alternative diesel-fueled school bus with a gross vehicle weight rating over 14,000 pounds that was manufactured 

on or after April 1, 1977 is required to have installed a particulate filter in the bus that reduces diesel particulate 

matter emissions by 85 percent. An exception exists for any school bus that operates fewer than 1,000 miles per 

year thereafter, are informed.  Any school bus manufactured before April 1, 1977 should already be retired. 

 

Any diesel-fueled, dual-fueled, or alternative diesel-fueled school bus with a gross vehicle weight 

rating over 14,000 pounds shall be equipped with a particulate filter designed to reduce particulate 

matter emissions, oxides of the nitrogen emissions, and other pollutants.  (13 CCR 2025) 

 

Drinking Water 

 

Note:  The following section addresses the quality of tap water available in schools. See AR 3550 - Food 

Service/Child Nutrition Program for information about requirements specified aboveto make fresh drinking 

water available during mealtimes. 

 

The quality and the potential legal and employment consequences of failure to comply. All 

complaints of noncompliancesafety of the district's drinking water sources shall be 

reviewedregularly assessed, and drinking fountains shall be regularly cleaned and remedial action 

taken as necessary. The maintained to avoid the presence of dirt, mold, or other impurities or health 

concerns. 

 

Whenever any contaminants in the drinking water are determined to be a concern, the 

Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to identify the source and mitigate the 

concern to ensure the availability of safe drinking water. As needed, the Superintendent or designee 

shall maintain records of the training and of any complaintsprovide alternative sources of drinking 

water, such as bottled water, to ensure that students have access to fresh drinking water at 

mealtimes and enforcement actions for at least three years.  (13 CCR 2480)other times throughout 

the day. 

 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

 
Note:  Health and Safety Code 116277, as added by AB 746 (Ch. 746, Statutes of 2017), requires a community 

water system serving a school constructed before January 1, 2010 to test for lead in the potable water system of 

the school. If the school's lead level exceeds 15 parts per billion (equivalent to .015 milligrams per liter), the district 

must notify parents/guardians, take immediate steps to shut down all fountains and faucets where the excess lead 

levels may exist, and provide a potable source of drinking water to students. See the California Water Boards' 

"Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of Drinking Water in California Schools:  Updated for Assembly 

Bill 746/Health and Safety Code 116277." Schools that have their own water supply, such as a well, are required 

to test for lead, copper, and other contaminants in tap water pursuant to other state and federal law and regulations, 

including 22 CCR 64670-64679 and 40 CFR 141.80-141.91, and may revise the following paragraph to reflect 

applicable requirements. 

 



5 

 

Whenever testing of drinking water finds concentrations of lead that exceed federal and state 

standards, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and take immediate steps 

to make inoperable any fountains or faucets where excess lead levels may exist.  (Health and Safety 

Code 116277) 

 

Lead Exposure Reduction 
 

Note:  The following section reflects recommendations of the EPA. For further information, the district may 

contact its city or county lead poisoning prevention program. 

 

In addition to keeping school facilities as dust-free and clean as possible, the following steps shall 

be taken to minimize potential exposure to lead in school facilities: 

 

1. Lead-based paint, lead plumbing and solders, or other potential sources of lead 

contamination shall not be used in the construction of any new school facility or the 

modernization or renovation of any existing school facility.  (Education Code 32244) 
 

2. Lead exposure hazards shall be evaluated before any renovation or remodeling is begun, 

and children shall not be allowed in or near buildings in which these activities may create 

lead dust.  Contractors and workers shall comply with state and federal standards related 

to the handling and disposal of lead debris and the clean-up and containment of dust within 

the construction area. 

 

Note:  17 CCR 35001-36100 contain state standards for lead abatement services.  In addition, 40 CFR 745.61-

745.339 extend federal standards for renovations involving lead-based paint to child-occupied facilities, which 

include preschools and elementary schools. 

 

3. Lead-based painted surfaces that are in good condition shall be kept intact. If lead-based 

paint is peeling, flaking, or chalking, contractors or workers shall follow state and federal 

standards for safe work practices to minimize contamination when removing the paint. 

 

4. Soil with highlow lead content may be covered with grass, other plantings, concrete, or 

asphalt. For soil with high lead content, removal and abatement are required. 

 

5.Whenever testing of drinking water finds concentrations of lead that exceed federal and state 

standards in 40 CFR 141.80 and 22 CCR 64678, water outlets shall be flushed thoroughly each 

day before use or made inoperable until a plan for remediation can be implemented. The 

Superintendent or designee may supply alternative sources of drinking water as appropriate. 

5. Drinking water shall be regularly tested for lead and remediated as provided in the section 

"Drinking Water" above. 

 

Any action to abate existing lead hazards, excluding containment or cleaning, shall be taken only 

by contractors, inspectors, and workers certified by the California Department of Public Health in 

accordance with 17 CCR 35001-35099.  (Education Code 32243) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parent/guardians, teachers, and staff members if 

significant risk factors for lead exposure are found.  (Education Code 32243) 



6 

 

 

Mercury Exposure 

 

Note:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. Mercury may exist in schools in 

thermometers, barometers, switches, thermostats, flowmeters, lamps, and other sources. Although devices 

containing mercury are considered safe as long as the mercury is sealed, if a device is broken and mercury spills, 

the health of students and staff may be endangered. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall identify any products containing mercury that are present in 

district facilities and, to the extent possible, shall replace them with mercury-free alternatives. 

 

Note:  The EPA's web site contains detailed procedures for cleaning up a small mercury spill, actions that should 

never be taken in the event of a spill, and items that should be assembled in a mercury spill kit. 

 

Staff shall receive information about proper procedures to follow in the event of a mercury spill.  

Clean-up instructions, a clearly labeled kit with necessary clean-up supplies, and a list of local 

resources shall be readily accessible. 

 

In the event of a spill, staff shall evacuate all students from the immediate area of the spill, ensure 

that any clothing or other items with mercury on them remain in the room, open windows to the 

outside, and close doors to other parts of the school.  Staff who are trained in proper clean-up 

procedures may carefully clean a small spill. As needed for larger or difficult-to-clean spills, the 

Superintendent or designee shall use an experienced professional referred by the local health 

department or environmental agency. 

 

Any products containing mercury shall be properly disposed at an appropriate hazardous waste 

collection facility. 

 

Asbestos Management 
 

Note:  Education Code 49410-49410.7 and the federal Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) (15 

USC 2641-2656; 40 CFR 763.80-763.99) contain requirements for asbestos inspection and abatement which are 

applicable to school districts. For further information, consult the local air quality management district or air 

pollution control district. 

 

40 CFR 763.84 requires the district to designate a person who will be responsible for ensuring that federal and 

state requirements are properly implemented. According to the EPA, this designated person is not required to be a 

licensed asbestos consultant, but the district must verify that he/she has received proper training. The specific 

knowledge that the designated person must have is described in the EPA's publication How to Manage Asbestos 

in School Buildings:  AHERA Designated Person's Self-Study Guide. The following section may be revised to 

reflect the position designated to fulfill this responsibility, who may be the same person designated above to 

coordinate all of the district's environmental safety programs. 

 

The Superintendent shall designate an employee who shall ensure that the district's responsibilities 

related to asbestos inspection and abatement are implemented in accordance with federal and state 

regulations.  This employee shall receive adequate training to perform these duties, including, as 

necessary, basic knowledge oftraining on the health effects of asbestos; detection, identification, 

and assessment of asbestos-containing materials; options for controlling asbestos-containing 



7 

 

building materials; asbestos management programs; and relevant federal and state regulations.  (40 

CFR 763.84) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development); (cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

The designated employee shall ensure that the district complies with the following requirements: 

 

1. School facilities shall be inspected for asbestos-containing materials as necessary in 

accordance with the following: 

 

a. Any school building that is leased or, acquired, or otherwise used by the district 

shall be inspected for asbestos-containing materials prior to its use as a school 

building, unless exempted by federal regulations.  (40 CFR 763.85, 763.99) 

 

bb.At least once every three years, the district shall conduct a re-inspection of all known or 

assumed asbestos-containing building materials in each school building. (40 CFR 763.85) 

 

c. At least once every six months, the district shall conduct a periodic surveillance 

consisting of a visual inspection of each school building that contains or is assumed 

to contain asbestos-containing building materials.  (40 CFR 763.92) 

 

c. At least once every three years, the district shall conduct a re-inspection of all 

known or assumed asbestos-containing building materials in each school building.  

(40 CFR 763.85) 

 

2.  Based on the results of the inspection, an appropriate response, which is sufficient to 

protect human health and the environment, shall be determined from among the options 

specified in 40 CFR 763.90.  (40 CFR 763.90) 

 

 The district may select the least burdensome response, taking into consideration local 

circumstances, including occupancy and use patterns within the school building and 

economic concerns such as short-term and long-term costs.  (40 CFR 763.90) 
 

3. An asbestos management plan for each school site shall be maintained and regularly 

updated to keep it current with ongoing operations and maintenance, periodic surveillance, 

inspection, re-inspection, and response action activities.  (15 USC 2643; 40 CFR 763.93) 

 

 The asbestos management plan shall be available for inspection in district and school 

offices during normal business hours and parent. Parent/guardian, teacher, and employee 

organizations areshall be annually informed of the availability of these plans.  (40 CFR 

763.84, 763.93) 
              (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications); (cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

4. Staff, students, and parents/guardians shall be informed at least once each school year about 

any inspections, response actions, and post-response actions, including periodic re-

inspection and surveillance activities, that are planned or in progress.  (40 CFR 763.84) 
              (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications); (cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 



8 

 

5. Inspections, re-inspections, periodic surveillance, and response actions, including 

operations and maintenance, shall be conducted in compliance with state and federal 

regulations for the protection and safety of workers and all other individuals.  (40 CFR 

763.84; Education Code 49410.5; 40 CFR 763.84) 

 

Asbestos inspection and abatement work, preparation of a management plan, and any 

maintenance activities that may disturb asbestos-containing building materials, except for 

emergency repairs or small-scale, short-duration maintenance activities, shall be completed 

by state-certified asbestos inspectors or contractors.  (15 USC 2646; 40 CFR 763.84, 

763.85, 763.91) 

 

6. All custodial and maintenance employees shall be properly trained in accordance with 

applicable federal and/or state regulations.  (40 CFR 763.84) 

 

All district maintenance and custodial staff who may work in a building that contains 

asbestos-containing building materials, regardless of whether they are required to work 

with such materials, shall receive at least two hours of related asbestos awareness training.  

New maintenance and custodial staff shall receive such training within 60 days after 

beginning employment. Any maintenance or custodial staff who conduct activities that will 

disturb asbestos-containing materials shall receive 14 hours of additional training.  The 

trainings shall address the topics specified in 40 CFR 763.92.  (15 USC 2655; 40 CFR 

763.84, 763.92) 

 

7. Short-term workers, such as telephone repair workers, utility workers, or exterminators, 

who may come in contact with asbestos in a school shall be provided information regarding 

the locations of known or suspected asbestos-containing building materials.  (40 CFR 

763.84) 
 

8. Warning labels shall be posted immediately adjacent to any known or suspected asbestos-

containing building material located in routine maintenance areas in accordance with 40 

CFR 763.95.  (40 CFR 763.84) 
 

The district shall maintain, in both the district and school offices and for a period of three years, 

records pertaining to each preventive measure and response action taken; staff training; periodic 

surveillances conducted; cleaning, operations, and maintenance activities; and any fiber release 

episode.  (40 CFR 763.94) 

 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 

revised: August 9, 2011 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

***Page 2 – keep paragraph marked per Sue*** 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 

 

All Personnel BP 4111 

 4211 

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 4311 

 
Note: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice and related provisions of collective 

bargaining agreements. 

The Governing Board of Educationshould ensure that district hiring procedures are designed to avoid liability 

for negligent hiring. In C.A. v. William S. Hart Union High School District, the California Supreme Court held 

that a district can be held vicariously liable for the negligence of its administrators and supervisors in the hiring, 

retention, and supervision of a counselor who sexually harassed and/or abused a student. 

 

The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively carry 

out the district's vision, mission to provide high-quality education to its students and to ensure the 

efficiency of district operations, and goals. 

 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 

(cf. 01000200 - Goals for the School District) 

(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 4100 - Certificated Personnel) 
(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel) 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, open, and transparent recruitment 

and selection processes and procedures whichthat ensure that individuals are selected based on 

demonstrated knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or 

unlawful discrimination. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 

(cf. 4111.2/4211.2/4311.2 - Legal Status Requirement) 

 

When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review the job description for the 

position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position.  He/she 

also shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates. 
 

The district's selection procedures shall include screening processes, interviews, observations, and 

recommendations from previous employers , and observations when appropriate, as necessary to 

identify the best possible candidate for a position. The Superintendent or designee may establish 

an interview committee, as appropriate, to rank candidates and recommend finalists. All 

discussions and recommendations shall be confidential in accordance with law. 
 

(cf. 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may establish an interview committee to rank candidates and 



2 

 

recommend finalists. During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate 

how they will be able to perform the duties of the job. No inquiryAll discussions and 

recommendations shall be madeconfidential in accordance with regard to any category of 

discrimination prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 

 

No inquiry shall be made with regard to any information prohibited by state or federal 

nondiscrimination laws. 

 
Note: Labor Code 432.3, as added by AB 168 (Ch. 688, Statutes of 2017), prohibits districts from seeking a job 

applicant's salary history information and from relying on salary history as a factor in determining whether to offer 

employment to an applicant or the salary to offer. However, if the applicant discloses salary history information 

voluntarily and without prompting, the district is not prohibited from considering or relying on such information 

in determining the salary for that applicant. Labor Code 432.3 is not applicable to salary history information that 

is disclosable pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code 6250-6270) or the Freedom of 

Information Act (5 USC 552). 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, in regard to an applicant's 

salary history information, including compensation and benefits. He/she shall also not rely on 

salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment to an applicant 

or the salary to offer. However, the Superintendent or designee may consider salary information 

that is disclosable under state or federal law or that the applicant discloses voluntarily and without 

prompting. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the applicant the pay scale 

for the position to which he/she is applying.  (Labor Code 432.3) 

 

Note:  The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 

For each district position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate 

who meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person shall be 

employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or 

designee. 
 

County Office of Education:   

***Keep paragraph below per Sue*** 

For each county position, the County Superintendent of Schools will advise the Sierra County 

Board of Education of a candidate that meets all qualifications for a position and has cleared the 

employment mandates established by law and the Sierra County Office of Education. No person 

shall be employed without the recommendation or endorsement of the County Superintendent of 

Schools or designee. 

 
(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act4112.22 - Staff Teaching 

English Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 

(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives) 

(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 

 

 



3 

 

 

 

Recruitment Incentives 

 
Note: The district may offer incentives (e.g., signing bonuses, assistance with beginning teacher induction costs, 

assistance with the process of obtaining a clear credential including covering credential costs, a mentoring 

program, additional compensation, and/or subsidized housing) to recruit teachers, administrators, or other 

employees in accordance with district needs. 

AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017) establishes the California Educator Development (CalED) grant program to assist 

districts with attracting and supporting the preparation and continued learning of teachers, principals, and other 

school leaders. 

Health and Safety Code 53573 permits districts to establish and implement programs that address the housing 

needs of teachers and other district employees who face challenges in securing affordable housing. Health and 

Safety Code 53574 enables housing projects on district property restricted to rentals for Teachersdistrict 

employees to qualify for both federal and state low-income housing tax credits. 

 

The following optional section may be revised to reflect local incentive programs. 

 

With Board approval, the Superintendent or designee and in accordance with district needs, the 

district may provide incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees to work in 

low-performing schools or in hard-to-fill positions, such as signing bonuses, assistance with 

beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional compensation, and/or 

subsidized housing. 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

41530-41533  Professional Development Block Grant 
35035 Responsibilities of superintendent 

44066  Limitations on certification requirement 

44259  Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements 

44735  Teaching as a Priority block grant 

44740-44741  Personnel management assistance teams 
44750  Teacher recruitment resource center 

44830-44831  Employment of certificated persons 

44858  Age or marital status in certificated positions 

44859  Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re: residency 

45103-45139  Employment (classified employees) 

49406  Examination for tuberculosis 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
815.2  Liability of public entities and public employees 

6250-6276.48 Public Records Act 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, including: 

12940-1295612957  Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016 

LABOR CODE 

432.3 Salary information 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 

552 Freedom of Information Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 
1324a  Unlawful employment of aliens 

1324b  Unfair immigration related employment practices 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 



4 

 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.51-106.61  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or activities 

COURT DECISIONS 
C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al., (2012) 138 Cal.Rptr.3d 1 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS EDUCATIONAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION 

PUBLICATIONS 

Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies, Research Brief, Veritas Research 

and Evaluation Group, October 2017 

WEB SITES 
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://ccsesa.org/recruit 

California Department of Education: https://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org 

Teach USA:  http://www.calteachhttps://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 

 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 

revised: September 11, 2012 

revised: February 11, 2014 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

***Suggested changes by Sue/Kristie highlighted in yellow*** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 

All Personnel BP 4119.11 

 4219.11 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 

 

Note:  Education Code 231.5 mandates the district to have a written policy on sexual harassment. As part of this 

mandate, the district also should adopt a sexual harassment policy related to students; see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual 

Harassment. 

 

Generally, courts recognize two types of conduct as constituting sexual harassment. "Quid Pro Quo" ("this for 

that") sexual harassment is considered to have occurred when a person in a position of authority makes another 

individual's educational or employment benefits conditional upon that other person's willingness to engage in 

unwanted sexual behavior (e.g., promising a promotion for sex). "Hostile environment" sexual harassment, on the 

other hand, is conduct by the perpetrator that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates a hostile, 

intimidating, or abusive educational or professional environment for another. Sexual harassment also covers 

retaliatory behavior against a complainant, witness, or other participant in the complaint process. Pursuant to 

Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 11009, interns, volunteers, and job applicants are entitled to the same 

protection against sexual harassment as applicable to employees. 

 

Sexual harassment is prohibited pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-17) 

and/or Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688), as well as the California Fair 

Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 12900-12996). 

 

Pursuant to Government Code 12940, employers may be held liable for sexual harassment committed against their 

workers by clients, customers, or other third parties if they knew or should have known of the harassment and 

failed to take immediate and appropriate corrective action to stop the harassment. 

 

The Governing Board of Education is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free 

of harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment of district employees.  The 

Board also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against county/district employees or other 

persons and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complain, testifycomplains, 

testifies, or otherwise participateparticipates in the complaint process established pursuant tofor 

the purpose of this policy and accompanying administrative regulation. . 

 

Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the gender, gender 

identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim. 

 

This policy shall apply to all county/district employees and, when applicable, to other persons on 

district property or with some employment relationship with the district, such as interns, 

volunteers, contractors, and job applicants. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

 

Note:  In addition to district discipline imposed on employees who engage in sexual harassment, Government 

Code 12940 provides that such employees may be held personally liable in a court of law for any damage to the 

victim(s). 



2 

 

 

Any county/district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 

incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is 

subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 
Note: Federal and state courts have provided guidance that may help employers avoid liability or mitigate damages 

in sexual harassment cases. In Department of Health Services v. Superior Court (McGinnis), the California 

Supreme Court outlined measures that may constitute mitigating factors in the assessment of damages, including 

establishing anti-harassment policies, communicating those policies to employees, consistently enforcing the 

policies, preserving the confidentiality of employees who report harassment, and preventing retaliation against 

reporting employees. The U.S. Supreme Court in Burlington Industries v. Ellerth held that, for certain claims under 

federal law, an employer may defend against sexual harassment claims by proving that (1) reasonable care was 

exercised to prevent and promptly correct any sexually harassing behavior, and (2) the employee (victim) failed 

to take advantage of the preventive and corrective opportunities provided by the employer. 

 

Pursuant to Government Code 12950.1, employers with 50 or more employees are required to provide two hours 

of sexual harassment training to supervisory employees. See the accompanying administrative regulation for 

timelines and training requirements. 

 

Items #1-4 below reflect the courts' guidance and Government Code 12950.1, and should be modified to reflect 

district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 

investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 

1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 

 

2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to staffemployees and 

others to whom the policy may apply 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 

 

4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 

separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 

developments 

 

Note: The following optional paragraph reflects a recommendation of the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 

Commission's informal guidance Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment and may be revised to reflect 

district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shallmay periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 

strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting regular 

anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is perceived to be 

tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed expertise to evaluate the 

district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for receiving feedback on systems 

and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the harassment policy, complaint 

procedures, or training. 



3 

 

 

 

Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 

 

Note: Pursuant to 2 CCR 11034, the district may be liable for sexual harassment committed by a supervisor, 

coworker, or a third party.  In addition, as part of its affirmative duty to prevent sexual harassment, the district is 

required pursuant to 2 CCR 11023 to instruct supervisors to report complaints. 

 

Any county/district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed in the performance 

of his/her district responsibilities or who has knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by 

or against another employee shall immediately report the incident to his/her direct supervisor, 

another supervisor, the district's coordinator for nondiscrimination, the Superintendent, or, if 

available, a complaint hotline or an ombudsman. A supervisor or administrator who receives a 

harassment complaint shall promptly notify the coordinator. 

 

Note: In Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, one of the factors relied on by the U.S. Supreme Court in finding liability 

for harassment by a supervisor was the failure of the policy to provide an assurance to its employees that harassing 

supervisors may be bypassed in registering complaints. 

 

Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed and investigated in accordance with the complaint 

procedure specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. An employee may bypass 

his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. 

 

All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 

necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (2 CCR 

11023) 
 

Any district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed or who has knowledge of 

any incident of sexual harassment by or against another employee, shall immediately report the 

incident to his/her supervisor, the principal, district administrator, or Superintendent. 

 

A supervisor, principal, or other district administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall 

promptly notify the Superintendent or designee 

 

Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed in accordance with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination 

in Employment. An employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the 

supervisor is the subject of the complaint. 

 

Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, incites, 

compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is subject to 

disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 

 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 



4 

 

 

12940  Prohibited discrimination 

12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 

12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 

1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11009  Employment discrimination 

11021 Retaliation 
11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
11024  Sexual harassment training and education 

11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial 

assistance 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 4220 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.9  Dissemination of policy 
106.1-106.9 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 

106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or activities 

COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 

Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 

Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 
 

Management Resources: 

OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL 

Protecting Students fromU.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION 

PUBLICATIONS 

Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999, November 2017 

WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Policy approved: April 10, 2007 

revised: November 10, 2015 

revised: January 10, 2017 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 
All Personnel AR 4119.11 

 4219.11 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 

 
Note: The following administrative regulation is mandated pursuant to Education Code 231.5 and includes reasonable steps for 

preventing the occurrence of discrimination and harassment as required pursuant to Government Code 12940 (California Fair 

Employment and Housing Act). The focus of this administrative regulation is on sexual harassment by and of employees. 

Pursuant to Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 11009, interns, volunteers, and job applicants are entitled to the same protection 

against sexual harassment as applicable to employees. 

For information related to sexual harassment involving students, see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

This administrative regulation shall apply to all allegations of sexual harassment involving employees, 

interns, volunteers, and job applicants, but shall not be used to resolve any complaint by or against a student. 
 

Definitions 
Note: In Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Services, Inc., the U.S. Supreme Court held that same-sex sexual harassment could be 

actionable under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-17). 

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted requests 

for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature made against 

another person of the same or opposite sex in the work or educational setting when:  (Education Code 212.5; 

Government Code 12940; 2 CCR 11034) 
 

1. Submission to the conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the individual's 

employment. 
 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment decision affecting 

the individual. 
 

3. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for any decision affecting the individual 

regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through the district. 
 

4. Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 12940, conduct may meet the definition of sexual harassment regardless of whether or 

not the alleged harasser is motivated by sexual desire for the victim. 

Prohibited sexual harassment also includes conduct which, regardless of whether or not it is motivated by 

sexual desire, is so severe or pervasive as to unreasonably interfere with the victim's work performance or 

create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 12940, the district may be held liable for sexual harassment committed against 

employees by clients, customers, or other third parties if the district knew, or should have known, of the harassment and 

failed to take immediate and appropriate corrective action to stop the harassment. The following paragraph clarifies that 

sexual harassment may include acts by supervisors, co-workers, or other parties and should be modified to reflect district 

practice. 

 
Examples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment in the work or educational setting, whether 

committed by a supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic comments about an 

individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for sexual activity; sexual jokes or 

stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, innuendoes, derogatory comments, sexually 

degrading descriptions, or the spreading of sexual rumors 



2 

 

 

 

2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually explicit emails; 

displaying sexually suggestive objects 
 

3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing the body; 

touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; cornering, blocking, leaning over, or 

impeding normal movements 
 

Training 
Note: The following paragraph is consistent with a district's affirmative duty to protect its employees from sex discrimination, 

including sexual harassment, pursuant to 2 CCR 11023. In its informal guidance, Promising Practices for Preventing 

Harassment, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission recommends that employers provide sexual harassment 

training to all employees, not just supervisors and managers. In addition, since BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment requires 

employees to report sexual harassment against students, training employees to recognize and address sexual harassment 

incidents furthers the district's interest in protecting both employees and students against prohibited conduct. Thus, it is strongly 

recommended that districts periodically provide sexual harassment training or information to all their employees, especially 

those who work at school sites. 

 

Provision of periodic training to all district employees could also help foster a positive work environment and mitigate damages 

against a district in the event of sexual harassment litigation. In Department of Health Services v. Superior Court (McGinnis), 

the California Supreme Court held that employers that have taken reasonable steps to prevent and correct workplace sexual 

harassment may be able to reduce damages in the event of a lawsuit. Such steps may include establishing anti-harassment 

policies and communicating those policies to employees. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees receive training regarding the district's sexual 

harassment policies when hired and periodically thereafter.  The training shall include how to recognize 

prohibited or harassing conduct, the procedures for reporting and/or filing complaints involving an employee, 

employees' duty to use the district's complaint procedures, and employee obligations when a sexual 

harassment report involving a student is made to the employee. The training shall also include information 

about processes for employees to informally share or obtain information about harassment without filing a 

complaint. (cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) & (cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) &  
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

Note:  Government Code 12950.1 requires districts with 50 or more employees to provide two hours of sexual harassment 

training and education once every two years to every supervisory employee, defined as any employee with the authority to take 

employment action, including hiring, transferring, suspending, and disciplining other employees, or recommend such action if 

the exercise of that authority is not merely routine or clerical in nature. All newly hired supervisors or employees promoted to 

a supervisory position must receive the training within six months of their hire or assumption of the supervisory position. 

Compliance with this law does not insulate the district from any liability for harassment. 

Governing Board members, as elected officials, are not usually considered "supervisors"; however, since Board members have 

the authority to hire, reward, or discipline the Superintendent and other employees, Board members may also be required to 

receive sexual harassment training. Districts should consult with legal counsel to ensure that the appropriate individuals receive 

training. 

Although the law does not require districts with fewer than 50 employees to provide sexual harassment training to supervisors, 

court decisions have held that providing training may help mitigate damages in sexual harassment lawsuits. The provision of 

supervisor training may also be a factor in determining whether a district has taken reasonable steps to prevent discrimination 

and harassment pursuant to Government Code 12940. Therefore, it is recommended that all districts, regardless of the number 

of employees, provide sexual harassment training. Districts with fewer than 50 employees that do not provide sexual harassment 

training may revise the remainder of this section to reflect district practice. 

 

Every two years, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that supervisory employees receive at least two 

hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding sexual harassment. All such 

newly hired or promoted employees shall receive training within six months of their assumption of the new 

position.  (Government Code 12950.1) 
 

A supervisory employee is any employee having the authority, in the interest of the district, to hire, transfer, 

suspend, lay off, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other employees, or the responsibility to 

direct them, adjust their grievances, or effectively recommend such action, when the exercise of the authority 



3 

 

 

is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.  (Government 

Code 12926)      (cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 

 
Note: Government Code 12950.1 and 2 CCR 11024 require that the training for supervisory employees contain specified 

components and be presented by trainers or educators with knowledge and expertise in the prevention of harassment, 

discrimination, and retaliation. 

 

The district's sexual harassment training and education program for supervisory employees shall be aimed at 

assisting them in preventing and effectively responding to incidents of sexual harassment, as well as 

implementing mechanisms to promptly address and correct wrongful behavior.  The training shall include, 

but is not limited to, the following:  (Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 11024) 
 

1. Information and practical guidance regarding federal and state laws on the prohibition, prevention, 

and correction of sexual harassment,  the remedies available to sexual harassment victims in civil 

actions, and potential district and/or individual exposure or liability 
 

2. The types of conduct that constitute sexual harassment and practical examples which illustrate sexual 

harassment, discrimination, and retaliation using training modalities such as role plays, case studies, 

and group discussions, based on factual scenarios taken from case law, news and media accounts, 

and hypotheticals based on workplace situations and other sources 
 

3. A supervisor's obligation to report sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation of which he/she 

becomes aware and what to do if the supervisor himself/herself is personally accused of harassment 
 

4. Strategies for preventing harassment, discrimination, and retaliation and appropriate steps to ensure 

that remedial measures are taken to correct harassing behavior, including an effective process for 

investigation of a complaint 
 

5. The essential elements of the district's anti-harassment policy, including the limited confidentiality 

of the complaint process and resources for victims of unlawful sexual harassment, such as to whom 

they should report any alleged sexual harassment, and how to use the policy if a harassment complaint 

is filed 
 

6. A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and administrative regulation, which each 

participant shall acknowledge in writing that he/she has received 
 

7.  The definition and prevention of abusive conduct that addresses the use of derogatory remarks, 

insults, or epithets, other verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, 

intimidating, or humiliating, and the gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person's work 

performance 
 

Note:  Item #8 below is required pursuant to Government Code 12950.1, as amended by SB 396 (Ch. 858, Statutes of 2017). 

8.  Practical examples of harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall retain for at least two years the records of any training provided to 

supervisory employees. Such records shall include the names of trained employees, date of the training, the 

type of training, and the name of the training provider.  (2 CCR 11024) 
 

 

Notifications 
Note: Education Code 231.5 requires that the district provide copies of its policy on sexual harassment to staff, as specified 

below. In addition, 2 CCR 11024 requires that supervisory employees undergoing mandatory training receive a copy of the 

district's policy and acknowledge receipt of the policy; see item #6 in the section "Training" above. 

 



4 

 

 

A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall:  (Education Code 231.5) 

 

1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building, district office, or other area 

of the school where notices of district rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are 

posted 
 

2. Be provided to every district employee at the beginning of the first quarter or semester of the school 

year or whenever a new employee is hired 
 (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's comprehensive 

rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct 
 

Note:  Government Code 12950 requires the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) to develop an information 

sheet on employment discrimination and the illegality of sexual harassment. This document is available on DFEH's web site. 

 

All employees shall receive either a copy of an information sheetssheet prepared by the California 

Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or a copy ofthe district information sheets that 

containcontains, at a minimum, components on:  (Government Code 12950) 
 

1. The illegality of sexual harassment 
 

2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law 
 

3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples 
 

4. The district's complaint process available to the employee 
 

5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 
 

6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC 
 

7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 11021 for opposing harassment prohibited by 

law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an investigation, proceeding, or 

hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC 
 

Note: Government Code 12950, as amended by SB 396 (Ch. 858, Statutes of 2017), requires districts to post, in a prominent 

and accessible location, a poster developed by DFEH regarding transgender rights. This poster is available on DFEH's web site. 

 

In addition, the district shall post, in a prominent and accessible location, DFEH'sthe DFEH poster on 

discrimination in employment and the illegality of sexual harassment. and the DFEH poster regarding 

transgender rights.  (Government Code 12950) 
 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 

revised: November 10, 2015 

revised: January 17, 2017 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

**Pg 4 – Choose Option 1 per Sue 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 

Certificated Personnel AR 4161.1 

 4361.1 

PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 

 

Note: The following administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining. Education Code 44978 provides a 

minimum of 10 days of personal illness or injury leave (sick leave) per year for certificated employees working five days 

a week. The Governing Board may allow additional days at its discretion; if it does so, the following paragraph should be 

revised accordingly. 
 

Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) require districts to grant a minimum of one hour of 

paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days within a year of their employment, 

including temporary and substitute employees. Pursuant to Labor Code 246, a district may use a different sick leave 

accrual method which provides for the accrual to be on a regular basis so that an employee accrues at least 24 hours of 

sick leave or paid time off by the 120th calendar day of his/her employment or each calendar year or 12-month period.  
 

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad and only district employees covered by a valid collective bargaining 

agreement may be exempted from them, if the collective bargaining agreement expressly provides paid sick leave in an 

amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, includes final and binding 

arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and provides premium wage rates for all 

overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more than the state minimum wage 

rate. Since many districts may not satisfy all the conditions for this exemption, this administrative regulation has been 

drafted to include the requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district whose collective bargaining agreement meets all 

the conditions for exemption may modify this administrative regulation accordingly. 
 

For additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see the section titled "Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act 

Requirements" below.  For paid sick leave for temporary and substitute certificated employees, see BP/AR 4121 - 

Temporary/Substitute Personnel. For sick leave for classified employees, see AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave. 

 

Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days' leave of absence 

with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service.  Employees who work 

less than five school days per week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to 

the time they work.  However, any part-time employee who is entitled to less than three days of paid 

sick leave per year due to the amount of time worked shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 

246, if he/she is eligible.  (Education Code 44978; Labor Code 245-249) 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) & (cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 

 

Use of Sick Leave 

 
Note: Items #1-8 below reflect allowable uses of sick leave specified in law. The district may expand this list to include 

any additional purposes authorized by law, authorized by the district, or included in a bargaining agreement. 

 

Certificated employees may use sick leave for absences due to: 
 

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of employment; 

quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a contagious disease during the 

employee's performance of his/her duties; or temporary inability to perform assigned duties 

because of illness, accident, or quarantine (Education Code 44964) 
 (cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 

 

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery (Education Code 44965, 44978) 
 (cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 

 



2 

 

3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981) 
 (cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 

 

Note: Optional item #4 below may be revised as desired to specify a different minimum increment for sick leave. 

 

4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 

 

5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been 

exhausted  (Education Code 44984) 
 (cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 

 

6Note: Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (29 USC 2612) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA) 

(Government Code 12945.2), a district is required to grant leave to an eligible employee to bond with a child after the 

birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child, if the district employs 50 or more employees within 75 miles of the 

worksite where the employee requesting the leave is employed. For this purpose, employees may, but are not required to, 

use sick leave for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave.   

 

Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 63 (Ch. 686, Statutes of 2017), extends the right to parental leave to an 

eligible employee who is not covered by FMLA or CFRA when the district employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of 

the worksite where the employee requesting the leave is employed. 

 

For further information regarding parental leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. 

 

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster 

care placement (parental leave) (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 

29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)  

 
Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 233, any district that provides sick leave to its employees is required to permit them to use 

sick leave, in an amount not less than the sick leave that would be accrued during six months at the employee's then 

current rate of entitlement, for the purposes specified in items #7-8 below.   

 

For the purpose of using sick leave to attend to the health care needs of a family member, as specified in item #7 below, 

Labor Code 245.5 defines "family member" as an employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, child (biological, 

adopted, or foster child; stepchild; legal ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), parent (biological, 

adoptive, or foster parent; stepparent; legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic 

partner; or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), grandparent, grandchild, or sibling.  
 
For additional information about leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking granted in accordance 

with item #8 below, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves. 

 

7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the 

diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care  (Labor Code 

233, 246.5) 

 

78. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 

230(c) and/or 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or his/her child, when 

the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 

233, 246.5) 

 

For the purposes specified in items #6-7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of 

sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 

233) 

 

An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick leave has not 

yet been accrued.  (Education Code 44978) 



3 

 

 

Note: The following paragraph is optional. 

 

An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of his/her 

termination, and shall be deducted from an employee’s final paycheck. 
 

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 

44978) 

 

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave they have 

accumulated. 
 

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous district.  

(Education Code 44979, 44980) 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44979-44980, a certificated employee is entitled to have his/her accumulated sick leave 

transferred with him/her in the circumstances specified in the following optional paragraph. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district after at 

least one school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated position in another 

district, county office of education, or community college district within one year, he/she may request 

that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to the new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 

44980) 
 

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 

Note: Education Code 44978.2, as amended by SB 731 (Ch. 597, Statutes of 2017), provides that an employee who is a 

military veteran or a former or current member of the California National Guard or a federal reserve component is entitled 

to additional sick leave with pay for up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a qualifying 

military service-connected disability (i.e., an injury or disease that occurred during active duty or was made worse by 

active military service and that has a disability rating by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs of 30 percent or higher). 

As amended, Education Code 44978.2 provides that credit for such leave begins on either the effective date of the 

employee's disability rating decision from the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins 

or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is later.  

 

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a newly hired certificated employee who is 

a military veteran withformer active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current 

member of the California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave 

with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental health 

treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more by the U.S. Department 

of Veterans Affairs shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing 

medical treatment for his/her military service-connected disability. An eligible employee employed. An 

eligible employee who works less than five days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion 

to the time he/she works.  (Education Code 44978.2) 

 

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee on the first day of employment and shall remain 

available for the following 12 months of employment. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall 

not be carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 44978.2) 

 



4 

 

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee receives 

confirmation of the submission of his/her disability application to the U.S. Department of Veterans 

Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to employment after active duty, whichever is 

later.  When the employee receives his/her disability rating decision, he/she shall report that information 

to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for the 

leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the 10-day maximum leave. If the 

disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick 

leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  (Education Code 

44978.2) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44978.2, the district may require proof that a leave granted under this law is used for 

treatment of a military service-connected disability. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification 

Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-

connected disability. 
 

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date 

that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and 

shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 44978.2) 

 

Notification of Absence 

 

Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

An employee shall notify the district of his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is known, so that 

substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration 

of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the 

duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than 

three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the day on which he/she intends to return to work. If 

the employee fails to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of 

the substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay. 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 

 

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44977, an employee who is absent for up to five months after exhausting all his/her 

available sick leave must receive his/her regular salary minus the cost of a substitute. Option 1 below reflects this 

requirement. However, Education Code 44983 provides that Education Code 44977 does not apply to those districts that 

adopt a rule that gives certificated employees 50 percent or more of their regular salary during the period of absence. 

Option 2 below is for use by districts that choose to specify such a level of compensation; these districts are mandated to 

adopt a rule to this effect. 

 

When an employee is absent for a period of more than five months, or is absent for a cause other than illness, Education 

Code 44977 and 44983 provide that the amount deducted from his/her salary shall be determined according to the rules 

and regulations adopted by the Board as long as such rules are not in conflict with State Board of Education regulations. 

If not covered in the district's bargaining agreement, the district may add provisions to this section reflecting salary 

deductions for employees absent longer than five months. 

 

OPTION 1: During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick 

leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent from 

his/her duties for an additional period of up to five school months, the employee shall receive his/her 

regular salary minus the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every 



5 

 

reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute and has been unable to do so, the amount that 

would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the employee's salary.  (Education Code 

44977) 

 

An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. However, 

if the school year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may take the balance of 

the five-month period in a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 44977) 

 
Note: Option 2 below is mandated for use by districts that choose to provide employees at least 50 percent of their regular 

salary during the period of absence pursuant to Education Code 44983. The following paragraph specifies 50 percent and 

should be modified by districts that have set a higher percentage. 

 

OPTION 2: After a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, including all 

accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent for an additional period of 

up to five months, he/she shall receive 50 percent of his/her regular salary during the additional period 

of absence.  (Education Code 44983) 

 

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List 
 

Note: The following paragraph is required for districts that select Option 1 (i.e., differential pay) in the section "Continued 

Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay" above and should be carefully considered by districts 

that select Option 2 (i.e., 50 percent pay). Education Code 44978.1 requires the establishment of a reemployment list for 

employees who are unable to resume their duties after the five-month period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977. 

Although Education Code 44978.1 does not explicitly require a reemployment list for districts selecting Option 2, such 

districts should be aware that failure to establish a reemployment list may subject employees to termination following a 

five-month absence. 

 
Therefore, any district that selects Option 2 and currently maintains a reemployment list for employees who are absent 

beyond the five-month period, or that wishes to establish such a list, should consult legal counsel before changing its 

policy or practices. 

 

If a certificated employee is not medically able to resume his/her duties after the five-month period 

provided pursuant to Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in another position or 

on a reemployment list. Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary 

employees or 39 months for permanent employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month 

period. If during this time the employee becomes medically able, he/she shall be returned to employment 

in a position for which he/she is credentialed and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1) 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 

 

Differential Pay for Parental Leave 

 
Note: The following section is subject to any conflicting provision in a collective bargaining agreement that provides greater 

parental leave rights. 

 

During each school year, anya certificated employee who has exhaustedmay use all available sick leave, 

including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent on accountfor the purpose of parental leave 

(baby bonding) pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 shall receive differential pay for a period up to 

12 work weeks.  The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated 

sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. Such parental leave shall run concurrently with 

the parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and the aggregate amount of parental 

leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. Eligibility for parental leave pursuant to 

Education Code 44977.5 shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 

months.  (Education Code 44977.5)(Education Code 44977.5) 



6 

 

 
Note: Unlike leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2, leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 does 

not require an employee to have at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12-month period in 

order to be eligible for parental leave. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave for further 

information on requirements related to the California Family Rights Act. 

 

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 

months. (Education Code 44977.5) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44977.5, the district is required to provide differential pay to a certificated employee 

when he/she has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent due to 

parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.2. Such an employee is entitled to receive differential pay, calculated 

in the same manner described in Option 1 or 2 in the section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is 

Exhausted/Differential Pay" above, for up to 12 work weeks. 
 
Since Education Code 44977.5 does not expressly require districts to provide differential pay to employees who are 

eligible for parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 63 (Ch. 686, Statutes of 2017), it is 

unclear whether such employees would be entitled to differential pay. Districts should consult legal counsel if they have 

questions regarding differential pay for such employees. 

 

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and 

continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the remainder of the 

12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5) 

 

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental leave 

taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave 

shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 

12945.2, 12945.6) 

 

Verification Requirements 

 

Note: Education Code 44978 mandates the Board to adopt regulations requiring proof of illness or injury and prescribing 

the means of verification. However, Education Code 44978 provides that these regulations shall not discriminate against 

evidence of treatment and the need for treatment by the practice of a well-recognized religion. For verification 

requirements for employees on leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - 

Family Care and Medical Leave. The following section should be modified to reflect district practice and any procedures 

which have been specified in bargaining agreements. 
 

Labor Code 233 requires districts to allow their employees to use sick leave for the purposes specified in Labor Code 

246.5, the paid sick leave law. Because the paid sick leave law is silent on requests for verification, and actually requires 

an employer to provide an employee with paid sick days upon oral or written request, districts should be cautious in 

requiring verification for sick leave used for the purposes specified in Labor Code 246.5 (items #7-8 in the section "Use 

of Sick Leave" above).  Although a district is permitted to require verification from an employee who is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, pursuant to Labor Code 230 and 230.1, a general insistence on verification 

could be deemed a violation of Labor Code 246.5. Any district with questions regarding its authority related to verification 

should consult legal counsel. 

 

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by submitting a 

completed and signed district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows 

chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or 

whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury. 
 



7 

 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the 

district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical condition of the employee. The 

report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for further leave of absence and a prognosis 

as to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's 

condition does not warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice 

to the employee, deny further leave. 
 

Note:  42 USC 2000ff-1, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, and its implementing regulations, 29 CFR 

1635.1-1635.12, specify that it is unlawful for a district to request, require, or purchase an employee's or his/her family 

member's individual genetic information except in complying with the medical certification requirements for family care 

and medical leave purposes or with the employee's prior written authorization. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family 

Care and Medical Leave. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1635.9, any such information received by the district must be kept 

confidential as specified below. 

 

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician 

shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the 

employee's genetic information. 
 

Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a 

confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and shall 

not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended 

medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating that he/she is able to 

return to duty and stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations. 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) & (cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 

 

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 

Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, all employers, including those that provide paid time off to their employees under 

existing policy or other law, must comply with the requirements specified in the following section. Pursuant to Labor 

Code 248.5, noncompliance with the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act could result in enforcement action 

against the employer, including the imposition of civil and monetary penalties. Any district with questions regarding the 

applicability of this new law should consult its legal counsel. 

 

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any manner 

discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint 

with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249. 
 

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall: 
 

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the 

following information: 
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 

b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days 
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick 

leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the 

Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or retaliates against him/her 



8 

 

 

2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per 

year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request 
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their 

pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
 (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each 

eligible employee for three years 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44964  Power to grant leave of absence in case of illness, accident, or quarantine 

44965  Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth 

44976  Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district 

44977  Salary deduction during absence from duties up to five months after sick leave is exhausted 

44977.5  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 

44978  Provisions for sick leave of certificated employees 

44978.1  Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on reemployment list 

44978.2  Leave for military service connected disability 

44979  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district 

44980  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education 

44981  Leave of absence for personal necessity 

44983  Exception to sick leave when district adopts specific rule 

44984  Industrial accident or illness 

44986  Leave of absence for disability allowance applicant 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 

12945.6  Parental leave 

LABOR CODE 
220  Sections inapplicable to public employees 

230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 

230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time 

off 

233  Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 

234  Absence control policy 

245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5601  Transfer of accumulated sick leave 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 

1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 

COURT DECISIONS 
Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 406 

 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 

revised: July 12, 2011 

revised: June 17, 2015 

revised: June 13, 2017 

revised: June 12, 2018 



1 

**Pg 4 – Choose Option 1 per Sue 

**Pg 8 – Choose Option 1 per Sue 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
 

Classified Personnel  AR 4261.1 

 

PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 

 

Note: The following administrative regulation is subject to collective bargaining. Twelve days of paid personal illness or 

injury leave (sick leave) per year is the minimum prescribed by Education Code 45191 for classified employees employed 

five days a week in both merit and non-merit system districts. The Governing Board may allow more sick leave at its 

discretion; if it does so, the following paragraph should be revised accordingly. 
 

Labor Code 245-249 (the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act) require districts to grant a minimum of one hour of 

paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked to their employees who work for 30 days within a year of their employment, 

including classified employees. Pursuant to Labor Code 246, a district may use a different sick leave accrual method 

which provides for the accrual to be on a regular basis so that an employee accrues at least 24 hours of sick leave or paid 

time off by the 120th calendar day of his/her employment or each calendar year or 12-month period.  
 

The provisions of Labor Code 245-249 are very broad and only district employees covered by a valid collective bargaining 

agreement may be exempted from them, if the collective bargaining agreement expressly provides paid sick leave in an 

amount equal to or exceeding the amount of leave required pursuant to Labor Code 246, includes final and binding 

arbitration of disputes regarding the application of the paid sick days provisions, and provides premium wage rates for all 

overtime hours worked and a regular hourly rate of pay of not less than 30 percent more than the state minimum wage 

rate. Since many districts may not satisfy all the conditions for this exemption, this administrative regulation reflects the 

requirements of Labor Code 245-249. Any district whose collective bargaining agreement meets all the conditions for 

exemption may modify this administrative regulation accordingly. 
 

For additional requirements of Labor Code 245-249, see sections titled "Short-Term and Substitute Employees" and 

"Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements" below. For sick leave for certificated employees, see AR 

4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave. 

 

Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 days' leave of absence with full pay 

for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per fiscal year. Employees who work less than a full fiscal year 

or fewer than five days a week (part-time employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the 

time they work.  However, any part-time employee whose work hours are so few as to entitle him/her to 

less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per fiscal year shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 

246, if he/she is eligible.  (Education Code 45191; Labor Code 245-249) 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) & (cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 

 

Use of Sick Leave 
 

Note: Items #1-8 below reflect allowable uses of sick leave specified in law. The district may expand this list to include 

any additional purposes authorized by law, authorized by the district, or included in a bargaining agreement. 

 

A classified employee may use sick leave for absences due to: 

 

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of employment, or 

by quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a contagious disease during 

the employee's performance of his/her duties  (Education Code 45199) 
 

2. Pregnancy, childbirth, and recovery  (Education Code 45193) 
 (cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 

 

3. Personal necessity as specified in Education Code 45207 



2 

 
 (cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 

 

Note: Optional item #4 below may be revised to specify a different minimum increment. 

 

4. Medical or dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 
 

5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been exhausted  

(Education Code 45192) 
 (cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 

 

6Note: Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) (29 USC 2612) and California Family Rights Act (CFRA) 

(Government Code 12945.2), a district is required to grant leave to an eligible employee to bond with a child after the 

birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child, if the district employs 50 or more employees within 75 miles of the 

worksite where the employee requesting the leave is employed. For this purpose, employees may, but are not required to, 

use sick leave for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave. 

 

Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 63 (Ch. 686, Statutes of 2017), extends the right to parental leave to an 

eligible employee who is not covered by FMLA or CFRA when the district employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of 

the worksite where the employee requesting the leave is employed. 

 

For further information regarding parental leave, see AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave. 

 

6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or foster 

care placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 

29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 233, any district that provides sick leave to its employees is required to permit them to use 

sick leave, in an amount not less than the sick leave that would be accrued during six months at the employee's then 

current rate of entitlement, for the purposes specified in items #7-8 below. 

 

For the purpose of using sick leave to attend to the health care needs of a family member, as specified in item #7 below, 

Labor Code 245.5 defines "family member" as an employee's spouse, registered domestic partner, child (biological, 

adopted, or foster child; stepchild; legal ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis), parent (biological, 

adoptive, or foster parent; stepparent; legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic 

partner; or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child), grandparent, grandchild, or sibling.  

 

For additional information about leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking granted in accordance 

with item #8 below, see AR 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves. 

 

7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the 

diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care (Labor Code 

233, 246.5) 

 

78. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 

230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or his/her child, when the 

employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 

246.5) 

 

For the purposes specified in items #6-7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the amount of 

sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of entitlement.  (Labor Code 

233) 
 

An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even if credit for 

such leave has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified employee shall not be entitled 



3 

 

to more than six days of sick leave until he/she has completed six months of active service with the 

district.  (Education Code 45191) 

 

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  (Education Code 

45191) 
 

Note: The following paragraph is optional. 

 

An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of his/her 

termination and shall be deducted from an employee’s final paycheck. 
 

The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave accumulated in a 

previous district. However, if the employee's previous employment was terminated for cause, the transfer 

of the accumulated leave shall be made only if approved by the Governing Board of Education.  

(Education Code 45202) 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 45202, a classified employee who is terminated after at least one year of employment 

for any reason unrelated to discipline is entitled to have his/her accumulated sick leave transferred with him/her in certain 

circumstances. The following paragraph, which provides for the notification of employees as a way to implement this 

provision, is optional and may revised to reflect district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment with the district 

is terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for cause that, if he/she accepts 

employment in another district, county office of education, or community college district within one 

year of the termination of employment, he/she shall be entitled to request that the district transfer his/her 

accumulated sick leave to his/her new employer.  (Education Code 45202) 
 

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 

Note: Education Code 45191.5, as amended by SB 731 (Ch. 597, Statutes of 2017), provides that an employee who is a 

military veteran or is a former or current member of the California National Guard or federal reserve component is entitled 

to additional sick leave with pay for up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a qualifying 

military service-connected disability (i.e., an injury or disease that occurred during active duty or was made worse by 

active military service and that has a disability rating by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs of 30 percent or higher). 

As amended, Education Code 45191.5 provides that credit for such leave begins on the effective date of the employee's 

disability rating decision from the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns 

to employment after active duty, whichever is later.   

 

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a newly hired classified employee who is a 

military veteran withformer active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member 

of the California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with pay 

of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental health treatment, for 

a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or higher by the U.S. Department of Veterans 

Affairs shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical 

treatment for his/her military service-connected disability. An eligible employee employed. An eligible 

employee who works less than five days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the 

time he/she works.  (Education Code 45191.5) 
 

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee on the first day of employment and shall remain 

available for the following 12 months of employment.The amount of leave shall be credited to the 

employee either on the date the employee receives confirmation of the submission of his/her disability 

application to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns 

to employment after active duty, whichever is later.  When the employee receives his/her disability rating 



4 

 

decision, he/she shall report that information to the Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating 

decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted 

toward the 12-day maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for 

the leave, the district may change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an 

alternative leave balance.   (Education Code 45191.5) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 45191.5, the district may require proof that a leave granted under this law is used for 

treatment of a military service-connected disability. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section “Verification 

Requirements” below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-

connected disability. 

 

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the first date 

that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be carried over and 

shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 45191.5) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section "Verification 

Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a military service-

connected disability. 

 

Notification of Absence 

 

Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of his/her need to 

be absent as soon as such need is known so that the services of a substitute may be secured as necessary. 

This notification shall include an estimate of the expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes 

longer than estimated, the employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter 

than estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the 

day preceding the day on which he/she intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the 

district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted 

from the employee's pay. 
 

Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 

 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 45196, a district is authorized to pay any employee who has exhausted his/her paid 

leaves his/her salary minus the actual pay received by a substitute for the remainder of a five-month absence to which the 

employee is entitled (Option 1 below). Alternatively, such an employee may be compensated at 50 percent or more of 

his/her salary for up to 100 working days, regardless of whether or not a substitute is hired (Option 2 below). 

 

Districts that maintain a catastrophic leave program for their classified employees should specify how the program will 

affect the differential leave pay to which the employee may be entitled. 

 

OPTION 1: 

 
Note:  In 53 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 111 (1970), the Attorney General clarified that a classified employee is entitled to a total 

period of five months, commencing with the first day of illness, during which the amount deducted from his/her salary 

may not exceed the sum which is actually paid a substitute. This five-month period runs concurrently with any other paid 

leave. After the employee has exhausted all paid leaves, he/she is entitled to differential pay for the balance of the five-

month period. 

 



5 

 
In California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District, the court ruled that a district could deduct 

from the absent employee's salary only the cost of an outside substitute employee, not the cost of existing classified 

employee(s) working additional hours to fill the position during the absence. 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 45196, the amount paid to a substitute must be less than the absent employee's salary unless 

the Board has adopted a salary schedule for substitutes. 

 

A classified employee who has exhausted all paid leaves, including sick leave, shall for the remainder 

of the five-month period of absence to which he/she is entitled, receive his/her salary minus the actual 

amount paid a substitute to fill the employee's position during his/her absence.  (Education Code 45196) 
 

The five-month period shall commence on the first day of the leave of absence and shall run concurrently 

with any other paid leave. 

 

Differential Pay for Parental Leave 

 

OPTION 2: 

 
Note: Education Code 45196 authorizes, but does not require, a district to annually credit regular classified employees 

with at least 100 working days of paid sick leave, and to compensate any such employee at 50 percent or more of the 

employee's regular salary for the remainder of the 100 working days after the employee has exhausted all leaves for which 

he/she would be entitled to a full salary. Any district that chooses this option is mandated to adopt a rule to that effect. 

Such districts should note that this option is exclusive of other paid leave, holidays, or vacation. In California School 

Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School District, the court ruled that the district's practice of coordinating 

or combining vacation with the 100 days differential leave contradicts the express provision of Education Code 45196. 

 
The following paragraph may be revised to specify more than 100 working days and/or the level of compensation the 

district will pay an employee, if it chooses to pay more than 50 percent of the employee's salary. 

 

Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working days of 

paid leave for personal illness or accident, including current year and accumulated days of leave. When 

the current year and accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the remainder of the 100 days shall be 

compensated at 50 percent of the employee's regular salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during 

the year in which they are credited shall be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This 

paid leave shall be exclusive of any other paid leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which 

the employee may be entitled.  (Education Code 45196) 

 

Parental Leave 

 
Note: The following section is subject to any conflicting provision in a collective bargaining agreement that provides greater 

parental leave rights.  

 

During each school year, anya classified employee who has exhaustedmay use all available sick leave, 

including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent on account of parental leave (baby bonding) 

pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 shall receive differential pay forfor the purpose of parental leave 

for a period up to 12 work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, 

including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  Such parental leave shall 

run concurrently with the parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 and the aggregate 

amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. Eligibility for parental 

leave pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during 

the previous 12 months.  (Education Code 45196.1)(Education Code 45196.1) 
 

Note: Unlike leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2, leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 does 

not require an employee to have at least 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12-month period in 



6 

 
order to be eligible for parental leave. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave for further 

information on requirements related to the California Family Rights Act. 

 

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 

months. (Education Code 45196.1) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 45196.1, the district is required to provide differential pay to a classified employee 

when he/she has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and continues to be absent due to 

parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.2. Such an employee is entitled to receive differential pay, calculated 

in the same manner described in Option 1 or 2 in the section "Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is 

Exhausted/Differential Pay" above, for up to 12 work weeks.   
 

Since Education Code 45196.1 does not expressly require districts to provide differential pay to employees who are 

eligible for parental leave pursuant to Government Code 12945.6, as added by SB 63 (Ch. 686, Statutes of 2017), it is 

unclear whether such employees would be entitled to differential pay. Districts should consult legal counsel if they have 

questions regarding differential pay for such employees. 

 

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and 

continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the remainder of the 

12 work weeks.  (Education Code 45196.1) 

 

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the parental leave 

taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of parental leave 

shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 

12945.2, 12945.6) 

 

Extension of Leave 

 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 45195, the following extension of leave may be either paid or unpaid, and the Board 

may grant full pay for the full 18 months' allowable absence, if desired. 

 

A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has exhausted all 

available sick leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid leave shall be so notified, in 

writing, and offered an opportunity to request additional leave. The Board may grant the employee 

additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a period not to exceed six months.  (Education Code 45195) and 

may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for lesser periods. The total additional 

leave granted shall not exceed 18 months. (Education Code 45195) 
(cf. 4216 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 

 

If the employee is still unable to resume his/her duties after all available paid and unpaid leaves have 

been exhausted, the employee shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period of 39 months. If during 

this time the employee becomes able to resume the duties of his/her position, he/she shall be offered 

reemployment in the first vacancy in the classification of his/her previous assignment. During the 39 

months, the employee's reemployment shall take preference over all other applicants except those laid 

off for lack of work or lack of funds, in which case the employee shall be ranked according to his/her 

seniority.  (Education Code 45195) 
 

Verification Requirements 

 
Note: Education Code 45191 mandates the Board to adopt regulations that require proof of illness or injury and prescribe 

the means of verification. However, Education Code 45191 provides that these regulations shall not discriminate against 

evidence of treatment and the need for treatment by the practice of a well-recognized religion. The following section 

should be modified to reflect district practice and any procedures that have been specified in bargaining agreements. 
 



7 

 
Labor Code 233 requires districts to allow their employees to use sick leave for the purposes specified in Labor Code 

246.5, the paid sick leave law. Because the paid sick leave law is silent on requests for verification, and actually requires 

an employer to provide an employee with paid sick days upon oral or written request, districts should be cautious in 

requiring verification for sick leave used for the purposes specified in Labor Code 246.5 (items #7-8 in the section "Use 

of Sick Leave" above).  Although a district is permitted to require verification from an employee who is a victim of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, pursuant to Labor Code 230 and 230.1, a general insistence on verification 

could be deemed a violation of Labor Code 246.5. Any district with questions regarding its authority related to verification 

should consult legal counsel. 

 

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and signed district 

absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 
 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence record shows 

chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or 

whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury. 
 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician selected by the 

district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical condition of the employee. The 

report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for additional leave of absence and a prognosis 

as to when the employee will be able to return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's 

condition does not warrant continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice 

to the employee, deny the request for additional leave. 

 
Note: 42 USC 2000ff-1, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, and its implementing regulations, 29 CFR 

1635.1-1635.12, specify that it is unlawful for a district to request, require, or purchase an employee's or his/her family 

member's individual genetic information except in complying with the medical certification requirements for family care 

and medical leave purposes or with the employee's prior written authorization. See AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family 

Care and Medical Leave. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1635.9, any such information received by the district must be kept 

confidential as specified below. 
 

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-selected physician 

shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the district should not contain the 

employee's genetic information. 

 

Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as a 

confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel file, and shall 

not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or extended 

medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating that he/she is able to 

return to work and stipulating any recommended restrictions or limitations. 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) & (cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 

Short-Term and Substitute Employees 

 
Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, the district is required to grant a minimum of one hour of paid sick leave for every 

30 hours worked by an employee who works for 30 days within a year of his/her employment. In implementing this 

requirement, Labor Code 246 permits the district to use any of the options specified below. Option 1 provides for paid leave 

accrual based on one hour for every 30 hours worked. Option 2 allows an accrual method that provides for a regular accrual 

basis and ensures that the employee receives 24 hours of paid sick leave by the 120th calendar day of his/her employment. 

Option 3 is for any district that credits employees with 24 hours of paid sick leave at the beginning of each year and does not 

allow unused sick leave to carry over to the next year. In addition, pursuant to Labor Code 245.5, retired annuitants who have 

not reinstated to the applicable public retirement system are excluded from participation in these leave benefit provisions. 

The district should select the option below which corresponds to its approach under Labor Code 246. 
See section below titled "Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements" for additional requirements. 



8 

 

 

OPTION 1: Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term 

or substitute employee who works for 30 or more days within a year of his/her employment shall be 

entitled to a minimum of one hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked.  Accrued paid sick days 

shall carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 48 hours.  (Labor Code 246) 

 

OPTION 2: Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term 

or substitute employee who works for 30 or more days within a year of his/her employment shall accrue, 

on a regular basis, paid sick leave of up to 24 hours by the 120th calendar day of his/her employment or 

each calendar year or 12-month period. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year of 

employment, up to a maximum of 48 hours.  (Labor Code 246) 

 

OPTION 3: Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term 

or substitute employee who works for 30 or more days within a year of his/her employment shall be 

credited with 24 hours of paid sick leave for that year. Unused sick leave shall not carry over to the 

following year of employment.  (Labor Code 246) 

 
Note:  The following paragraph applies to all the above options. 

 

Any short-term or substitute employee may begin to use accrued paid sick days on the 90th day of his/her 

employment, after which he/she may use the sick days as they are accrued.  (Labor Code 246) 

 
Note: The following paragraph applies to all of the above options and reflects the intent of the Healthy Workplaces, 

Healthy Families Act to enable California workers to address their own and their family's health needs and to provide 

them with economic security when they need to take time off work for reasons of domestic violence, sexual assault, or 

stalking. The following paragraph may be revised to include additional reasons for which short-term or substitute 

employees may use sick leave, pursuant to district policy or practice.  Pursuant to Labor Code 247.5, a district is not 

required to inquire into the purposes for which an employee uses paid leave. 

 

A short-term or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to:  (Labor Code 246.5) 
 

1. His/her own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the 

diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care 
 

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor Code 

230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or his/her child, when the 

employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 

 

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 

Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 245-249, all employers, including those that provide paid time off to their employees under 

existing policy or other law, must comply with the requirements specified in the following section. Pursuant to Labor Code 

248.5, noncompliance with the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act could result in enforcement action against the 

employer, including the imposition of civil and monetary penalties. Any district with questions regarding the applicability 

of this new law should consult its legal counsel. 

 

No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to use accrued sick 

days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or 

attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district 

violation of Labor Code 245-249. 
 

 

 



9 

 

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall: 
 

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that includes the 

following information: 
 

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 

b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 

c. The terms of use of paid sick days 
 

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using sick 

leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint with the 

Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or retaliates against him/her 
 

2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to use per 

year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable request 
 

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with their 

pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each 

eligible employee for three years 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
45103 Substitute employees 
45190 Leaves of absence and vacations 
45191 Leaves of absence for illness and injury 
45191.5  Leave for military service connected disability 

45193 Leave of absence for pregnancy (re use of sick leave under certain circumstances) 
45195 Additional leave for nonindustrial accident or illness; reemployment preference 
45196 Salary; deductions during sick leave 
45196.1  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 

45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 

LABOR CODE 
230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 

230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 

233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 

COURT DECISIONS 
California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School District, (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th  957 
California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District, (2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 510 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
53 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 111 (1970) 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regulation approved: June 17, 2015 

revised: February 9, 2016 

revised: June 13, 2017 

revised: June 12, 2018 


	01_06-12-2018_SCOE_Agenda
	02_SCOE MAY2018 ObjSumm
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	1
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	16
	
	
	
	5
	7000









	03_CDE Acceptance of 2017-18 Second Interim Reports
	04_16.17 SCOE State Audit Cert Ltr
	05_05_08_2018_SCOE_Minutes
	06_SCOE MAY2018 Checks
	Board Report
	1
	00014918
	00014919
	00014920
	00014921
	00014922
	00014923
	00014924
	00014925
	00014926
	00014927
	00014928
	00014929
	00014930
	00014931
	00014932
	00014933
	00014934
	00014935
	00014936
	00014937
	00014938
	00014939
	00014940
	00014941
	00014942
	00014943
	00014944

	2
	01
	76



	07_18-19 SCOE Spring ConApp Rpt
	2018-19 Certification of Assurances
	2018-19 Protected Prayer Certification
	2018-19 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	2018-19 Application for Funding
	2018-19 Substitute System for Time Accounting

	08_2018-19 SELPA Budget and Service Plan
	09_2018-19 SCOE Adopted Narrative
	10_18.19 SCOE Adopted Bdgt Comp
	11_18.19 SCOE Budget MYP Comparison
	12_2018-19 EPA Budget Recommendation
	13_2018-19 Budget
	14_Certificated Substitute Rate_July 2018
	15_06-2018 Guidesheet--BOARD PACKET
	16_06-2018 Policies
	0410_BP_Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities_RED
	3514_BP_Environmental Safety_RED
	3514_AR_Environmental Safety_RED
	4111&4211&4311_BP_Recruitment and Selection_RED
	4119.11&4219.11&4319.11_BP_Sexual Harassment_RED
	4119.11&4219.11&4319.11_AR_Sexual Harassment_RED
	4161.1&4361.1_AR_Personal Illness~Injury Leave_RED
	4261.1_AR_Personal Illness~Injury Leave_RED




